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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Good morning,

          3  ladies and gentlemen.  Welcome to today's hearing.

          4  My name is Joel Rivera, and I'm the Chair of the

          5  State and Federal Legislation Committee.  I would

          6  like to introduce my colleagues.  I'll first start

          7  to my left.  We have Council Member Vincent Gentile.

          8  At the far left we have Council Member Oliver

          9  Koppell.  We have Councilwoman Helen Sears, Council

         10  Member Jim Gennaro.  And then to my right, we have

         11  Councilwoman Madeline Provenzano, and Councilwoman

         12  Maria Baez.

         13                 Today the Committee on State and

         14  Federal Legislation will hold a hearing to consider

         15  the communication from the Mayor transmitting the

         16  memorandum of understanding concerning the Croton

         17  water filtration facility.

         18                 Just last year this Committee held

         19  three extensive hearings concerning the City's

         20  proposal to build a federally-mandated water

         21  filtration plant in Van Cortlandt Park.  At those

         22  hearings the Council heard testimony from the New

         23  York City Department of Environmental Protection,

         24  Commissioner Christopher Ward, the New York City

         25  Department of Parks and Recreation, elected
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          2  officials and over 50 representatives from various

          3  environmental groups, parks organizations, community

          4  groups and unions.

          5                 After considering many of the

          6  objections raised by environmental and parks

          7  organizations at those hearings, this Committee and

          8  the Council indicated to the State Legislature they

          9  would not consider any home rule requests regarding

         10  the alienation of parkland in Van Cortlandt Park

         11  until the legislation included the requirement that

         12  the City complete a supplemental environmental

         13  impact statement, the SEIS, with respect to the

         14  project.  After the State Legislature made that

         15  amendment, the Council passed the home rule message

         16  and the State passed the alienation legislation on

         17  July 22nd of 2003.

         18                 The State legislation authorizes new

         19  York City to alienate parkland at the Mosholu site

         20  for the Croton filtration plant.  Such authorization

         21  is contingent on a number of things including the

         22  execution of a memorandum of understanding, the MOU,

         23  between the City, the Senate and the Assembly, which

         24  must be ratified by the City Council and the City

         25  completing a supplemental environmental impact
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          2  statement on the construction of the water

          3  filtration facility.

          4                 A draft SEIS was prepared in December

          5  of 2003.  Two public hearings were held by the New

          6  York City Department of Environmental Protection for

          7  comment on the draft SEIS.  A final SEIS was issued

          8  on June 30th of 2004. The memorandum of

          9  understanding, which identifies the sum of money

         10  that the City will dedicate to parkland in the Bronx

         11  and the list of projects eligible for those funds

         12  was signed by the Mayor, the Assembly and Senate on

         13  September 3rd of 2004.

         14                 We are here today to hear testimony

         15  regarding the final SEIS and the MOU as well.

         16                 Given the number of witnesses who

         17  wish to testify at today's hearings, we ask that

         18  witnesses keep their testimonies within a limited

         19  time frame, and we will be requesting it to be no

         20  longer than five minutes.  But if it goes too long,

         21  we may have to shorten that time at a later point in

         22  time.  I'm going to be asking, since this has been a

         23  very controversial issue, that we try to keep the

         24  booing and the applause at a minimum.  We want to

         25  make suer that we give each person testifying ample
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          2  time to communicate their ideas and their opinions

          3  to the Committee before us today.

          4                 At this point in time -- as a matter

          5  of fact, we're going to be amending the time limit.

          6  We're going to be limiting testimony to three

          7  minutes per individual testifying.

          8                 At this point in time, I would like

          9  to call on my colleague Oliver Koppell as the

         10  sitting Council member within the Riverdale section

         11  of the Bronx to give his brief opening statement.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Good

         13  morning.  First of all, Mr. Chairman, as you know,

         14  I'm not a regular member of the Committee, and I

         15  want to thank you for your courtesy, not only in

         16  having me participate, but also in giving me the

         17  opportunity to make a statement.

         18                 I do represent Riverdale.  This

         19  particular project is in another part of my

         20  district, which is the Norwood Van Cortlandt Village

         21  section of my district.  My district covers most of

         22  the northernmost and westernmost portion of the

         23  Borough of the Bronx.

         24                 Before I start, I want to welcome

         25  here today my very good and long- time colleague,
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          2  Jeff Dinowitz, who succeeded me in the Assembly.  He

          3  now represents essentially the same area that I do

          4  and represents also the area where the filtration

          5  plant is projected to be located under the City's

          6  proposal.  Assembly Dinowitz is in the front there,

          7  and I'm sure we'll hear form him later.  I also want

          8  to welcome someone who's well known to you, Mr.

          9  Chairman, and to others of us but not nearly as well

         10  known to others as to you, and that is Naomi Rivera,

         11  who yesterday was victorious in the Democratic

         12  primary and is the Democratic candidate for the

         13  Assembly seat which is immediately adjacent and will

         14  affect her future constituents if she's successful

         15  in November, and we expect that to be the case.  Her

         16  future constituents will be affected not only by the

         17  construction of the plant itself but by ancillary

         18  facilities which are actually in the Assembly

         19  district that she will presumably represent.  So she

         20  has a direct interest and I know that she'll be

         21  given an opportunity to testify as well, and I want

         22  to welcome her here.

         23                 As you know, Mr. Chairman and

         24  colleagues, I have been, after a great deal of

         25  review and thought and meetings with the
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          2  Commissioner and so on, I have opposed building this

          3  filtration plant in my district and in the Bronx and

          4  in the City overall.  I don't support it being built

          5  anywhere in the City of New York.  While I know this

          6  hearing is primarily devoted to the MOU, the list of

          7  projects that are supposed to be funded sort of as a

          8  compensation, if you will, for the building of the

          9  filtration plant.

         10                 You mentioned also the environmental

         11  impact statement, which has now been approved by the

         12  City. And let me just say in my opinion, after

         13  reading the environmental impact statement, I

         14  believe that from many different points of view, and

         15  I will not belabor the hearing with this, others may

         16  speak about it more, the site at Eastview in

         17  Westchester County is far superior from a financial,

         18  from an environmental, from an operational, from a

         19  safety, from every point of view we have a superior

         20  site.

         21                 In my opinion, issue number one, we

         22  should not build in a park unless it is absolutely

         23  essential, with an essential facility that can't be

         24  anywhere else.  So I would say even if the Eastview

         25  site were sort of maybe a little bit better, a
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          2  little bit worse and even a little more expensive,

          3  we still shouldn't build in a park, because we have

          4  an alternative site that is acceptable, and I feel

          5  very strongly in that regard.

          6                 I might also mention that the

          7  constituency that's going to be primarily affected

          8  in the area, the Norwood constituency, the Van

          9  Cortlandt Village constituency and the Woodlawn

         10  constituency, is firmly opposed.  And while I don't

         11  want to get too much politics into this, two

         12  candidates who -- came out against the filtration

         13  plant, one yesterday against candidates who didn't

         14  take that position. I think that that's an

         15  indication of how people feel about this in the area

         16  affected.

         17                 Turning now for a moment to the MOU.

         18  It's a list of projects.  Many of these projects

         19  have merit, many of these projects should be funded

         20  by the City, but not by the water payers.  It should

         21  be funded by the general tax revenues as we fund

         22  other capital projects.  And many of the projects

         23  that are listed in the MOU are already on the

         24  drawing board.  Maybe they'd be done a little

         25  quicker if the $200 million is really realized, but
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          2  these are projects that should be done by the City

          3  and I believe will be done by the City in large

          4  measure, whether we build this filtration or not.

          5  The fact is I'm not going to criticize the projects,

          6  I'm not going to support them or oppose them.  This

          7  is a, I've described it before, I think it's a

          8  correct description, a faustian bargain.  It's in a

          9  sense a legal bribe to the people of the Bronx to

         10  say we'll give you this $200 million if you do

         11  something that's going to be harmful and offensive

         12  and unnecessary and contrary to our philosophy of

         13  open space and parkland.  It's a faustian bargain.

         14  It should be rejected.

         15                 And since the last step in the

         16  approval process is this Council voting for this,

         17  and I commend the Council and the Speaker for making

         18  Council approval a step that has to be taken, I urge

         19  my colleagues and I urgently ask my colleagues to

         20  vote against the MOU so that the project cannot

         21  proceed in the City of New York.

         22            And finally, because people have asked me

         23  to say this, if people would like to come and visit

         24  the site that the City wants to build on and the

         25  Eastview site that I'm recommending, I will arrange
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          2  it.  I will arrange transportation from City Hall.

          3  Just tell me after the hearing, and we'll arrange

          4  for a site visit before the Council votes on this,

          5  which I guess probably will be on the 28th of

          6  September.

          7                 So, Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the

          8  courtesy. I again urge the Committee to reject this

          9  MOU and to ask that the project be moved out of the

         10  City of New York.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         12  much, Council member.  At this point in time I'll be

         13  calling upon the Chairman on the Committee -- on the

         14  Environmental Committee here in the City Council,

         15  Jim Gennaro, to give his brief opening statement as

         16  well.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chairman, thank you for all of your work on this

         19  very complicated issue.  I also wish to thank

         20  Council Member Koppell for his advocacy on behalf of

         21  his local constituents and all those who have been

         22  involved in such a deep way with this very

         23  significant project.

         24                 Before becoming Chair of the

         25  Environmental Protection Committee, many people
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          2  know, and before becoming a Council member, I was a

          3  policy staff to the Environmental Protection

          4  Committee for many years.  In this capacity I've

          5  become quite familiar with the Croton drinking water

          6  filtration plant issue.  This includes familiarity

          7  with the process that the Department, the DEP, has

          8  undertaken over the years to look at various

          9  alternatives for sites for the plant, and that all

         10  of the other sites that have been considered by the

         11  DEP, you know, do have positive elements and to be

         12  sure all of the sites have down sides as well.

         13  Nonetheless, the City needs to build a facility to

         14  filter drinking water from the Croton system.  There

         15  are no two ways about it.

         16                 So the issue becomes which of the

         17  alternative facility sites have on balance the most

         18  positives and the fewest negatives.  More

         19  specifically, this means on a comparative basis

         20  which site will provide for superior water quality,

         21  water system dependability and water supply

         22  security; which will be the least costly

         23  alternative, which will cause the least

         24  environmental damage including fewer traffic and

         25  natural resource impacts.
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          2                 As you will hear today, based on

          3  their assessment of these and other criteria, the

          4  City has concluded that the Mosholu site in Van

          5  Cortlandt Park is the preferred alternative for

          6  treating the Croton water supply, and this committee

          7  and the entire Council will soon be asked to vote to

          8  support or reject this finding.  This is why today's

          9  hearing is certainly so important.

         10                 I certainly also want to thank all of

         11  the witnesses who are here to participate, and I can

         12  assure you that as Chair of the Environmental

         13  Protection Committee, I'm keenly interested in this

         14  matter and your thoughts on it. Before I conclude,

         15  I'd particularly like to thank those members of the

         16  public who have been involved, the local people

         17  involved in this plant siting process.  You've been

         18  at this for longer than -- or for as long as I have,

         19  and I thank you for your involvement.  I believe

         20  that it has raised the bar and resulted in a robust

         21  process for looking at the other alternatives.  I

         22  sit before you today and indicate that if this

         23  proposal is passed by the Committee, I will be in --

         24  I'll be supporting it in the full vote of the

         25  Council.
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          2                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for this

          3  opportunity to testify.  Thank you, Council Member

          4  Koppell, and thank you all the members of the

          5  Committee who have worked long and hard on this very

          6  contentious and difficult issue. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

          8  much, Council member.  At this point in time I'll

          9  give the floor to the Administration so they can

         10  give their presentation to the Committee members and

         11  to the public as well.  We have Commissioner Ward

         12  from the Department of Environmental Protection here

         13  as well as his colleagues.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WARD: Thank you very

         15  much.  I would ask the Committee's forbearance to go

         16  beyond the three minute limit for the

         17  Administration's testimony just for the purposes of

         18  laying out the history of the process of the

         19  projects so the public and all elected officials can

         20  be aware of what's gone on and then go through the

         21  critical issues which have been raised, both with

         22  the MOU and through the SEIS process.  But I will

         23  try to do this as quickly as possible.

         24                 Let me start obviously with the

         25  Croton system itself.  I've testified before the
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          2  City Council, and it's important to recognize that

          3  the Croton system services about 800,000 New York

          4  City residents.  It consists of 12 reservoirs, about

          5  375 square miles, and it is servicing areas of the

          6  Bronx, Washington Heights and the Lower East Side.

          7  It is providing at its peak about 290 million

          8  gallons to the City's water supply.  Although, as we

          9  all know, the Croton water system has not been

         10  functioning as it should from both the public health

         11  perspective and then, finally, from a water quality

         12  perspective.  So the question is asked why filter

         13  Croton water.

         14                 First and foremost, DEP must provide

         15  safe reliable drinking water from that system.

         16  Similarly, we must also address the Croton's chronic

         17  problems with taste, odor and color.  Those

         18  residents which receive Croton water should have no

         19  less water quality than those who do not. Most

         20  significantly, we must minimize potential risks, and

         21  this is associated with both microbes and DVPs,

         22  which is, as I have testified, refers to

         23  disinfectant byproducts.  There are potential long-

         24  term health risks including diarrhea, cancer and, in

         25  some cases, even birth defects if we don't treat
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          2  this water.         As you know, we are under a

          3  Federal mandate because of those public health risks

          4  to filter.  In fact, we are currently out of

          5  compliance given the fact that we have missed a

          6  series of consent decree driven dates for advancing

          7  this project.

          8                 And then finally, why we must filter

          9  the Croton water is that the Croton water is not

         10  only found through filtration and its purity but

         11  also found through complementing our strong

         12  watershed protection process.  As the Chairman and

         13  others have referenced, this has been a very long

         14  process with a significant amount of public

         15  involvement going back to 1999 when the ULURP and

         16  the final EIS were approved, which consisted of

         17  public hearings in the Bronx, Westchester, the

         18  Borough Hall's office as well as the community

         19  boards.  I won't summarize all the intervening

         20  dates, but we were, in the summer of 2004,

         21  finalizing the SEIS.  I issued the finding statement

         22  for Mosholu as the preferred site.

         23                 Perhaps one of the most contentious

         24  aspects of this site was referenced in Councilman

         25  Koppell's opening remarks, and that is associated
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          2  with how much do these projects cost and where would

          3  they be located and what would be the long- term

          4  implications for the City.  While I will acknowledge

          5  that the project itself raises a lot of critical

          6  questions that I will get to in more detail, I do

          7  think it's important, notwithstanding the opening

          8  remarks, to really review what are the costs of

          9  these projects and what are the relative benefits.

         10                 So let me state, because the record

         11  has been unclear on both in press reports and other

         12  public statements, as you can see from this chart,

         13  it has been consistent throughout DEP's publication

         14  of the SEIS.  The construction costs in Mosholu on a

         15  straight construction cost are less because of the

         16  earlier ULURP process.  $43 million was committed to

         17  addressing the environmental impacts in and around

         18  the Mosholu site.  $200 million, which is referred

         19  to within the MOU was part of the commitment, not in

         20  terms of a faustian bargain, but recognizing that

         21  large projects, and I will reference this elsewhere,

         22  large projects do have community impacts, and the

         23  City can and should, where appropriate, provide

         24  benefits back to the community, and the $200 million

         25  is included therefor, and what we are referring is
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          2  total capital cots.  But as you would see if you

          3  were to reduce that, the project itself remains

          4  significantly cheaper than Kensico, as the Kensico

          5  site as well as the New Croton aqueduct site.

          6                 Annual operating costs clearly must

          7  be included in how the City looks at a project, and

          8  Mosholu remains cheaper there.  So if one adds all

          9  of these cost components together, the Mosholu site

         10  remains significantly cheaper than the Kensico City

         11  site -- I'm sorry, the Eastview site with the

         12  Kensico City Tunnel or, more importantly, in some

         13  cases, the Eastview site with the new Croton

         14  aqueduct.  And I would add that that includes the

         15  $200 million.  So the differential which often

         16  people speak about would be greater if we were not

         17  including the benefits of $200 million worth of

         18  parks funding.

         19                 There are other benefits of this

         20  project as well.  One of the things the DEP

         21  struggles with is our tax payments through outlying

         22  communities where the watershed exists.  And in this

         23  particular project, we would expect to be paying on

         24  a net present value almost $100 million of taxes to

         25  Westchester and that, we believe, is a conservative
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          2  estimate as Westchester potentially faces its own

          3  fiscal crisis and fiscal problems and looks for

          4  solutions elsewhere.

          5                 I've mentioned adding the 200 plus

          6  $43 million for the mitigation includes a total of

          7  70 to 80 parks projects that can in fact now go

          8  forward, extinguishing all doubt of whether or not

          9  there is appropriate funding.

         10                 The annual increase for water rate

         11  users is less if we build it in Mosholu.  It's less

         12  in 2010 and 2011 and it's also less in 2016, and

         13  I'll come back to that issue at the end of my

         14  testimony because there were some concerns with

         15  regard to how those rates were calculated.

         16                 In terms of water quality, risk of

         17  contamination after filtering due to the Mosholu

         18  site, it's greatly reduced.  Small risks would

         19  remain due to the distance of the Eastview site to

         20  the City.  Double dosing of chlorine, again due to

         21  distance, would likely be necessary from Eastview.

         22  We'd like to keep that to a minimum.  We would not

         23  have to do it at Mosholu.

         24                 From a security perspective, which

         25  unfortunately we do need to acknowledge, building
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          2  something underground makes it far less vulnerable

          3  than above ground.            And there is, let's be

          4  candid about this, there are economic implications

          5  of building a project in the City as opposed to

          6  building it elsewhere, and the Bronx does have some

          7  of the highest unemployment rates within the City.

          8  This will create 660 construction jobs, an estimated

          9  almost 200 secondary jobs and will bring to the

         10  region, but primarily the Bronx, $1.6 billion of

         11  secondary economic impact.  As the City slowly pulls

         12  out of the recession that we've been facing, these

         13  are not benefits to be ignored.

         14                 In terms of operational advantages,

         15  Councilman Gennaro's remarks were well taken.  We do

         16  need to look at this in terms of how does the DEP

         17  water system operate and are there in fact

         18  operational advantages.  The first and foremost is

         19  that we are close to the water, the source water in

         20  Jerome Park.  That is important because it allows

         21  better response times to the diurnal flow demands of

         22  the City system.  We can bring this water in and

         23  distribute it throughout the City faster and more

         24  responsive to the ebb and flow of availability.

         25                 The treated water paths will be much
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          2  shorter and, therefore, far less vulnerable.  It

          3  will also require less pumping, which has long- term

          4  economic implications in terms of energy costs.

          5  Perhaps most importantly, that it will retain the

          6  system's redundancy.  All utility planning now,

          7  whether it's on the electrical grid or whether it's

          8  on the natural gas grid looks for a diverse supply

          9  to urban centers.

         10                 In building the site at the filter

         11  plant in Eastview, all of the City's water treatment

         12  facilities would all be within a single location.

         13  By maintaining it and building it in Mosholu, we

         14  will maintain the system's redundancy.

         15                 From an operational perspective, but

         16  also from a long- term tax and financial

         17  perspective, building it within the City allows the

         18  City to maintain complete control.

         19                 In sum, $243 million will be made

         20  available for the Bronx parks, and Liam Kavanagh

         21  from the Parks Department will go in more detail

         22  about those exciting projects.  660 construction

         23  jobs, a billion six in economic benefits, no tax

         24  payments to Westchester, and at the end of the day

         25  the Bronx will have at the site a state- of- the-
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          2  art golf course.

          3                 In sum, when you look at it from a

          4  system's perspective or reliability perspective, a

          5  security perspective, as well then finally as a cost

          6  perspective, the Mosholu site, as was found in the

          7  SEIS, is the preferred location from the City's

          8  perspective.  Having said that, DEP takes very

          9  seriously the construction of large projects in

         10  communities.  We do this all the time.  DEP is a

         11  large water utility.  We are currently building in

         12  Councilwoman Sear's and nearing completion now, a

         13  very large CSO project that had obviously community

         14  concerns there given the size and dimensions of that

         15  project.  In that project as well, there was a

         16  significant amount of public amenities associated

         17  with ensuring that the public access would be

         18  maintained, recreational opportunities would take

         19  place and all of our construction protocol at that

         20  site would be sensitive to the local communities.

         21  That project, by the way, included upwards of almost

         22  $100 million worth of benefits to that community.

         23                 But, nonetheless, in terms of

         24  construction mitigation at Mosholu, the SEIS makes

         25  clear that air pollution measures must be included
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          2  in all of the construction activity.  And for that

          3  reason, the use of all low sulphur diesel fuel or

          4  alternatives for all on- road and off- road

          5  construction vehicles is mandated.  Similarly, we

          6  will be using a state- of- the- art aggressive dust

          7  suppression system.  We have learned a lot,

          8  unfortunately, from the World Trade Center site and

          9  the technology associated with dust suppression, and

         10  we will be aggressively moving forward to ensure

         11  that all of that technology is brought to bear on

         12  this project.

         13                 Noise pollution obviously is a

         14  concern. Because of that DEP will be constructing a

         15  sound barrier around that site and with it we will

         16  be complying with all of the City noise code

         17  restrictions.  In addition, we have discussed

         18  publicly and with the community an ornamental wall,

         19  which will add additional noise reduction capacity,

         20  will be built, and we believe that that ornamental

         21  wall will also be a public amenity during

         22  construction.  And as you can see here on the

         23  projector, it will be an attractive amenity to the

         24  community.  If, however, the public wisdom at the

         25  time is that it should not be permanent, DEP will
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          2  take the ornamental wall down after the construction

          3  is completed.

          4                 Traffic is obviously a concern at the

          5  site. As the SEIS set forth, we will be widening the

          6  233rd Street exit off the Deegan and all

          7  construction vehicles will use that exit, thereby

          8  not passing any residential or commercial premises.

          9                 We are obviously working within a

         10  park and there are natural resource issues that we

         11  need to address. $13.4 million in a forestry

         12  management program is designed to mitigate the loss

         13  of any trees.  Additionally, the white pines plan at

         14  the 233rd Street site will be moved and replanted.

         15  People have raised this as a concern of the amount

         16  of white pines that are in the City, and we will

         17  make sure that they will be maintained.

         18                 Finally, for community concerns

         19  associated with rodents and rats in that community,

         20  DEP has brought this world- renowned expert to

         21  design a rodent management program in compliance --

         22  in cooperation with the Department of Health,

         23  Sanitation and Parks.  So as was set forth again in

         24  the SEIS, there will be no significant environmental

         25  impacts that will result from the operation of the
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          2  treatment plant at Mosholu.

          3                 Air emissions will be negligible and

          4  within all national ambient air quality standards.

          5  The water treatment residuals are non- hazardous and

          6  will be transported not by truck but to Hunts Point

          7  via a new force main that is underground, and all

          8  chemicals stored at the site are not flammable.

          9                 In sum, DEP and Parks has a long and

         10  storied history of positive benefits to the City of

         11  New York.  The construction of the Central Park

         12  valve chamber has been set forth a number of times.

         13  We would again highlight the construction of this

         14  project took place essentially next door to the

         15  Metropolitan Museum.  We can construct projects in

         16  sensitive areas.  We can then, more importantly,

         17  return them to park and recreational use.  This is

         18  what the valve chamber in Central Park looks like

         19  today.  Similarly, the Van Cortlandt Park valve

         20  chamber went through some significant construction,

         21  and today it is a green and beautiful location

         22  available for Bronx residents.

         23                 The Mosholu golf course as it looks

         24  today is not a state- of- the- art golf facility;

         25  however, by the time we have completed this project
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          2  and the project is built underground, as you can see

          3  from the slide, we will have in New York City and

          4  all its golfers will have a state- of- the art golf

          5  driving range which will be meeting not only park

          6  uses prospectively, but the park uses that were

          7  there before.

          8                 So in terms of -- what I'd like to

          9  now do is go through, in terms of the public debate,

         10  of what were the kind of frequently asked questions

         11  that have come up within the SEIS and speak to them

         12  directly.

         13                 Perhaps foremost was, and there were

         14  allegations in the paper that DEP cooked the numbers

         15  in the SEIS and the DEP was not forthcoming in all

         16  of its financial analyses.  The first question then

         17  is why were there changes in the water rate

         18  calculations from the draft EIS to the final EIS.

         19                 Financial forecasts are all moving

         20  targets. That's why within the SEIS we gave a range

         21  of interest rate forecasts, four, five and six

         22  percent.  We updated the water rate model due to the

         23  lower interest rates that we now are experiencing,

         24  as well as the structure of our recent bond issue.

         25  But we attempted, in the spirit of full disclosure,
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          2  to show how rates may change over time with variable

          3  interest rates, and that was set forth.

          4                 Similarly, and this was discussed in

          5  the public quite a bit, the model now does include

          6  estimates, estimates for the amenities in Eastview.

          7  As DEP has learned, not only within the City must be

          8  addressed local community impacts, the impacts for

          9  the community in Westchester and the Eastchester

         10  town and the Town of Mount Pleasant will all have to

         11  be addressed.

         12                 How and why did we calculate those

         13  mitigation levels for Eastview?  First and foremost,

         14  it was for the purpose of consistency.  SEISs must

         15  remain consistent for all of the sites.  And I would

         16  just add that, anecdotally, the DEP is building a

         17  lot of projects around New York State, Upstate and

         18  in New York City.  For example, as you are well

         19  aware, and we testified on this the other day, DEP

         20  must build due to the filtration avoidance

         21  determination an ultraviolet facility for the

         22  Cat/Del system up in Eastview. Just to start that

         23  project, we have already had to make $10 million of

         24  infrastructure commitments for Mount Pleasant to

         25  ensure that their water supply is appropriately
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          2  interconnected. So just doing the UV project already

          3  with Eastview has cost us $10 million.

          4                 The amenities in Eastview suggested

          5  by Mount Pleasant, and again I have a great deal of

          6  respect for the supervisor, Meehan, there, was

          7  anticipated because of the simultaneous construction

          8  if we were to do the UV facility there and Mosholu.

          9  So we included $28 million in the cost estimate as a

         10  starting point for the negotiations and a place

         11  holder for evaluating those socioeconomic impacts.

         12  Would that number go north, we can't say.

         13  Similarly, the Eastview mitigation number, like the

         14  $43 million in the earlier ULURP for Mosholu,

         15  included 23 for things such as the loss of wetlands,

         16  reforestation, traffic mitigation, noise attenuation

         17  and air pollution.

         18                 Another question that was raised is

         19  why is a portion of the Kensico City tunnel included

         20  in the cost of Eastview.  Just so people know, if we

         21  were to build the water treatment plant at Eastview,

         22  filtered water must be delivered through the Kensico

         23  City tunnel which, as everybody knows, doesn't exist

         24  yet, or the new Croton aqueduct, which does exist

         25  but would have to be rehabilitated so that it was
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          2  pressurized so there will be no infiltration of --

          3  into the system, thereby degrading the already

          4  filtered water.  But it would need to be

          5  rehabilitated and that would cost about $429

          6  million.  But from a utility perspective and a rate

          7  setting purpose, and also from an SEIS perspective,

          8  it would be inappropriate to ignore the conveyance

          9  cost, the proportional conveyance cost that Croton

         10  was utilizing out of the Kensico tunnel.  That

         11  tunnel is forecasted at about 2.4 billion for

         12  construction alone, so Croton's portion would be

         13  approximately $290 million.  Again, for SEIS

         14  consistency purposes, we included that amount.  It's

         15  not the full amount, it's the prorata proportional

         16  share of what the Croton system would be carrying

         17  through the Kensico City tunnel.

         18            For those who ask what is the status of

         19  the Kensico City tunnel, it is, final construction

         20  is, I must be candid, very uncertain.  This has been

         21  a project which has been discussed in New York City

         22  for decades.  It has been on the planning books of

         23  DEP.  I'm pleased to say it is now within our

         24  capital plan.  It is funded at this level in our

         25  ten- year plan only at 1.5 billion.  So this is not
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          2  even within our existing plan fully funded yet.

          3  Construction is not scheduled to begin until 2009

          4  and will not be completed probably until 2020 at the

          5  earliest.  We are just now looking at where these,

          6  where the route would be and where the sites for the

          7  valve and the shafts would be.  And as many New York

          8  City residents know, siting shaft sites, as we've

          9  experienced in Manhattan, can be lengthy and

         10  difficult.  So there is uncertainty there, and with

         11  that uncertainty comes a risk based assessment.  If,

         12  for whatever reason, fiscal reasons, political

         13  reasons the Kensico City tunnel is not built, we

         14  would have to pressurize the new Croton aqueduct and

         15  that would add $500 million to that project, and I

         16  set that forth in the cost comparison, making this

         17  project in Eastview significantly, significantly

         18  more expensive.

         19                 An SEIS is a complicated process of

         20  evaluating impacts on communities.  And again, I say

         21  DEP is fully aware that building a large project in

         22  a community is difficult, and we must and will be

         23  sensitive to those local impacts.

         24                 People ask why are there differences

         25  in the size of the impact study area in Mosholu and
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          2  Eastview, and that the whole idea that DEP selected

          3  study areas is erroneously, is really false.  The

          4  study areas fully encompass the potential project

          5  impacts.  And by that I mean that the maximum impact

          6  is predicted and, if the potential significant

          7  impacts are found at these receptors, a local

          8  resident, a traffic location, a stop sign, if those

          9  impacts are found at those receptors, the impact

         10  areas are extended further and further down until

         11  the impact dissipates and no longer would a

         12  significant impact be expected to occur.

         13                 Because of the difference in the

         14  study areas, you're seeing differences.  For

         15  example, the Mosholu study area is smaller in terms

         16  of traffic because of the proximity to the Major

         17  Deegan Expressway, and once traffic gets on the

         18  Major Deegan, local community impacts are no longer

         19  being realized and those traffic numbers dissipate

         20  along the Major Deegan.  So it's a matter of where

         21  are the receptors and when do significant impacts no

         22  longer occur, and that is the only reason why you're

         23  seeing differences in the study area.

         24                 What are the issues regarding

         25  property taxes in Eastview.  This Committee is well
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          2  aware, and I've testified in front of the

          3  Environmental Committee, that DEP already pays a

          4  significant amount of taxes to our upstate host

          5  communities.  Just by way of example, in 2000 all

          6  City taxes out of cities were $63 million.  In four

          7  years that tax liability has gone up to $84.2

          8  million.  In 2005, it's anticipated that this

          9  increase will go to $92.6 million. This is a direct

         10  economic transfer of wealth from New York City to

         11  these upstate communities.  And upstate communities

         12  are continually looking at ways they can charge DEP

         13  and the City to solve their local property tax

         14  burden.  For example, the Town of Olive in the New

         15  York State Real Property Services recently raised

         16  its valuation of the Ashokan Reservoir just west of

         17  Kingston, a reservoir, from $116 million to $340

         18  million, thereby increasing the City's long term tax

         19  rates for that site.  And as we set forth in the

         20  SEIS, if we were to build in Eastview, taxes to

         21  Mount Pleasant and Greenberg have been estimated at

         22  $6 million a year.  But again, they could go much

         23  higher and, unfortunately, taxes rarely go lower.

         24                 So in conclusion, this has been a

         25  process that DEP has taken enormously seriously with
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          2  elected officials and community groups.  Building

          3  large- scale projects in New York City is not easy

          4  but on balance, if you look at water supply

          5  reliability, control, security, cost, benefits to

          6  the City long term in terms of the Croton water

          7  users, we firmly believe that the best site is

          8  Mosholu. Moreover, with $243 million worth of parks

          9  benefits to the Bronx, we will be leaving a legacy

         10  for New York for the next 50 and a hundred years.

         11                 People often raise to DEP the issue

         12  of asthma, and asthma is obviously a critical

         13  concern for the community of the Bronx.  All health

         14  officials will tell you the best way to deal with

         15  asthma is recreational facilities and greening.

         16  $243 million will bring us recreational facilities

         17  and a green environment for the Bronx for the next

         18  hundred years.  Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         20  much.  Quite please.  Quiet down, please.  Quiet

         21  down. Thank you very much.  Commissioner, thank you

         22  very much. We're going to have a couple of questions

         23  I believe on behalf of the Committee.

         24                 Starting off I would like to ask,

         25  security is obviously one of the major concerns, and
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          2  I've noticed that we're going to be building, if we

          3  do it in Van Cortlandt, it will be built

          4  underground; if it's done in Eastview, it will be

          5  built above ground.  Why would it be built above

          6  ground in Eastview?  Is there a particular reason, a

          7  problem with the site, what was the rationale there?

          8                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  The rationale

          9  there is the City owns the site and where the

         10  location of its interconnection to the City's system

         11  with all the water that is coming through the

         12  Catskill and Delaware system there, it's better from

         13  a water supply and treatment perspective to have it

         14  above ground.  In New York City and below Jerome,

         15  building it below ground works for the City's

         16  distribution system but also, as you said, provides

         17  additional security.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  And also, I

         19  could imagine that if you were to do it below ground

         20  in Eastview, it would cost more money to do it

         21  because you would have to excavate the land in order

         22  to house the facility.  Would that be true?

         23                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay.  Now on

         25  the issue of asthma, as you've raised, that's been a

                                                            37

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  very important issue within the local community and

          3  within the Bronx as a whole, can you go through -- I

          4  know you've done it in your presentation, but can

          5  you go through some of the measures that DEP will be

          6  mandating to be utilized --

          7                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  -- To ensure

          9  that asthma is not a concern.  I know there's not

         10  going to be any chemicals used in the water

         11  filtration emitted into the ozone or into the air,

         12  but during the --

         13                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  -- Construction

         15  phase, can you highlight the key aspects that you're

         16  going to be mandating to be utilized?

         17                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Let me first go

         18  to the actual operation of the plant.  I didn't

         19  bring it today, but as I set forth in earlier

         20  environmental testimony, this plant is a water

         21  treatment plant.  It's not an industrial process.

         22  The emissions that are coming out of this plant are

         23  essentially treated air emissions, and the chemicals

         24  that are used for treating water is basically, when

         25  you think about it, chemicals that we end up
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          2  consuming as part of the water treatment process and

          3  they are non- flammable and not highly toxic

          4  chemicals.

          5                 In terms of how we will address the

          6  site, as I said, we will be requiring within our

          7  contracts for the companies that are working at that

          8  site state- of- the- art dust suppression

          9  technology.  It will include such things as ensuring

         10  wash down of all trucks.  It will include the kind

         11  of controlled environment for when either blasting

         12  in some cases or further construction is taking

         13  place that, to the extent possible, it's occurring

         14  within a confined environment.  We have modeled the

         15  project in terms of what we see in terms of dust

         16  emissions.  And again, the SEIS indicated that there

         17  will not be significant impacts on that community.

         18  We have built large projects elsewhere within the

         19  City and we can do it in an environmentally and

         20  community sensitive fashion.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay.  I'm going

         22  to ask you to stay because we also do have --

         23                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  -- The Deputy

         25  Commissioner for the Parks Department and I want to
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          2  get the Administration --

          3                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  -- Out of the

          5  way before we proceed to the next witnesses.  I'm

          6  pretty sure that my colleagues will have questions

          7  of your, Commissioner, and of course of the Deputy

          8  Commissioner of Parks, Deputy Parks Commission as

          9  well.  We are also joined by Deputy Parks

         10  Commissioner.  If you can please provide your

         11  testimony.  His name is Liam Kavanagh.  Hopefully I

         12  pronounced that okay.  He's the first Deputy

         13  Commissioner of the Department of Parks and

         14  Recreation.

         15                 DEPUTY PARKS COMMISSIONER KAVANAGH: Good

         16  morning, Chairman Rivera and members of the

         17  Committee.  I'm Liam Kavanagh, the First Deputy

         18  Parks Commissioner and on behalf of Commissioner

         19  Benepe, I am pleased to be here today to discuss the

         20  memorandum of understanding for the Croton water

         21  treatment plant in Van Cortlandt Park and the

         22  opportunity it presents for the Bronx parks system.

         23                 The construction of the water

         24  treatment plant in Van Cortlandt Park ensures that

         25  New Yorkers will continue to have safe and clean

                                                            40

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  drinking water for decades to come. The $200 million

          3  mitigation funds guarantees improvements to the

          4  Bronx park system on a scale not seen since the WPA

          5  projects of the 1930s.

          6                 I want to take this opportunity to

          7  discuss how this investment will transform the Bronx

          8  park system and describe how the list of mitigation

          9  projects was developed.

         10                 The funds will be spent on projects

         11  that support the basic mission of the Parks

         12  Department, that promote healthier people and

         13  communities and that contribute to the economic

         14  vitality of the Bronx.

         15                 Commissioner Benepe has clearly

         16  defined our priorities as putting children first,

         17  connecting people and the waterfront and greening

         18  New York.

         19                 To realize these goals, we focused on

         20  high impact projects that serve children and connect

         21  communities with green space but will be difficult,

         22  if not impossible, to fund through normal capital

         23  budget processes.  Large- scale park projects are

         24  often too costly for local elected officials to fund

         25  independently.  The Croton mitigation funds present
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          2  a unique opportunity to reconstruct major elements

          3  of park infrastructure, such as regional parks and

          4  athletic facilities, that have deteriorated over

          5  time.

          6                 Based on that approach, we

          7  recommended that the funds be divided into five

          8  broad programmatic categories:  Connecting the

          9  Bronx, improving waterfront access, greening

         10  neighborhoods, rebuilding regional recreational

         11  facilities and restoring neighborhood parks and

         12  playgrounds.

         13                 We will put children first by

         14  rebuilding regional recreational facilities and

         15  restoring neighborhood parks.  These are the places

         16  where children first learn to run, skate, ride

         17  bikes, make friends, invent games and become part of

         18  the broader community.  They are the places where

         19  children develop skills in soccer, baseball,

         20  basketball, where they compete in track events and

         21  tennis matches, where they learn teamwork, self-

         22  discipline and a sense of personal accomplishment.

         23  They are some of the most heavily utilized

         24  facilities in our system, and many of them have not

         25  been renovated in decades.  Investing funds in
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          2  regional facilities including Pelham Bay, Harris

          3  Field, Crotona and Van Cortlandt parks will ensure

          4  that the children of the Bronx play and practice in

          5  safe, top quality and modern facilities.

          6                 It is just as important that smaller

          7  neighborhood parks meet our children's needs.

          8  Throughout the Bronx, many neighborhood playgrounds

          9  require large investments that exceed the

         10  traditional funding mechanisms. Renovating these

         11  spaces will meet one of our most elemental goals-

         12  providing children with clean, safe and challenging

         13  places to play.  But active recreation is not just

         14  fun and games.  Youth obesity and related diseases

         15  is a national crisis, and nowhere is the crisis more

         16  prevalent than inner city neighborhoods.  Twenty

         17  minutes of daily exercise will make kids healthier

         18  regardless of genetic predisposition or diet.  It

         19  can also create habits that will last them a

         20  lifetime.  The Croton mitigation fund will provide

         21  the setting for building healthier lifestyles among

         22  our youth.

         23                 We will connect people and the

         24  waterfront by expanding our greenway system and

         25  enhancing public access to the waterfront.  With
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          2  Croton funding we will connect people from

          3  neighborhoods across the Bronx by completing the

          4  Bronx River, Hutchinson River and Soundview to Ferry

          5  Point Park greenways, as well as the Putnam Trail.

          6  Greenways not only provide active recreation and

          7  alternatives to traditional transportation routes,

          8  they also create opportunities to explore and learn

          9  the City in ways that were unimaginable just a few

         10  years ago.  Think of what a continuous greenway

         11  along the full length of the Bronx River will do to

         12  transform the entire borough.

         13                 We will also open the waterfront to

         14  Bronx residents with Croton- funded projects on the

         15  Long Island Sound, the East River and the Harlem

         16  River, including the development of new waterfront

         17  access near the Pelham landfill and Pelham Bay Park

         18  and the restoration of the lagoons at Soundview Park

         19  and Pugsley Creek Park.

         20                 Access to green space in all of its

         21  forms and passive recreation opportunities are

         22  important amenities in any community.  A study

         23  conducted in Tokyo in 2002 found that walkable green

         24  spaces and a positive attitude toward a person's

         25  community contributed directly to longevity among
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          2  senior citizens living in heavily urbanized areas.

          3  Greenways and waterfront parks will provide those

          4  same benefits in communities all over the Bronx.

          5                 Finally, we will meet our greening

          6  goals with a carefully focused program that adds

          7  street trees in underserved communities, creates new

          8  green streets and beautifies existing parks.

          9  Increased greening reduces energy demand and

         10  mitigates the urban heat effect.  As we are

         11  learning, trees not only provide shade and beauty,

         12  they are increasingly recognized as an essential

         13  component of a healthy community.  Trees remove

         14  particulate matter from the atmosphere and by

         15  moderating air temperatures help prevent the

         16  formation of ground level ozone, factors directly

         17  linked to asthma and other respiratory diseases.

         18                 Last year, our Central Forestry

         19  Division led a collaborative Hunts Point greening

         20  study that documented the relationship between trees

         21  and public health, and also created a blueprint for

         22  rebuilding the green infrastructure of that

         23  community.  The Croton mitigation funding will allow

         24  us to begin implementing that plan.

         25                 Collectively, the over 70 projects on
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          2  the list before you will better the lives of Bronx

          3  residents. They will improve New Yorker's

          4  transportation and recreation options by linking

          5  borough parks through an interconnected system of

          6  pathways.  Enhanced public waterfront access,

          7  beautify and green existing park space and improve

          8  the borough's existing athletic facilities and

          9  neighborhood playgrounds.

         10                 They also represent a strategic

         11  investment in the Bronx as a whole that will pay

         12  dividends beyond what we have already described.

         13  Parks play a critical role in the economic vitality

         14  of a community.  Time and again, we have seen

         15  investments in parks trigger beneficial economic

         16  impacts that go well beyond the bounds of the park

         17  itself. In a study commissioned by the New Yorkers

         18  for Parks, the consulting firm of Ernst & Young

         19  concluded that strategic investment in revitalizing

         20  parks yields significant economic returns to the

         21  City of New York, investors and neighboring

         22  communities.

         23                 The most recent example of this

         24  phenomenon was detailed in an August 22nd New York

         25  Times article citing the renovation of Madison
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          2  Square Park three years ago as a spur to residential

          3  development in that neighborhood.  One developer was

          4  quoted as saying, "The park renovation upgraded the

          5  whole area.  Without it, I wouldn't have been as

          6  flexible in paying what I paid for this building."

          7                 Communities throughout the borough

          8  will experience similar returns from the

          9  unprecedented investment in the Bronx park system

         10  provided by the Croton mitigation funds.

         11                 The Parks Department has a strong

         12  record of working collaboratively with everyone who

         13  has an interest in parks and open space.  Together

         14  with the City Parks Foundation, we have built the

         15  Partnership for Parks program into the largest

         16  network of park friends and advocacy groups in the

         17  country.  We have a solid working relationship with

         18  the City's 59 community boards, the official voice

         19  of New York's diverse neighborhoods, and we consult

         20  regularly with local elected officials on problems

         21  and issues that confront their constituents.

         22                 The Croton mitigation list was

         23  carefully crafted over the last year and a half with

         24  input from those three sources.

         25                 As you know, the City Charter
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          2  requires all agencies to work with local community

          3  boards on projects and services that affect their

          4  residents.  For Parks, that includes participation

          5  in the monthly district service cabinet meetings,

          6  regular involvement in the Parks' committee

          7  meetings, discussions on the scope and capital

          8  projects and the annual budget consultation process,

          9  a forum used in developing this park project list.

         10  The budget consultation includes a review of the

         11  capital priorities for each park -- for parks in

         12  each of the communities.  These requests range from

         13  relatively small projects such as sidewalk

         14  reconstructions to larger park projects such as

         15  creation of new skate parks or the renovation of

         16  existing recreation centers.

         17                 As part of the 2003 budget

         18  consultations with Bronx community boards, Bronx

         19  Borough Commissioner Dorothy Lewandowski advised

         20  each board as to which projects on their list would

         21  be suitable for Croton funding.  Larger projects,

         22  such as the $3.5 million reconstruction of Grant

         23  Park, were ideal for Croton funding.  Many projects

         24  on the list you have today came directly from our

         25  meetings with the community boards.  Commissioner
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          2  Lewandowski also advised the community boards to

          3  continue to seek funding from elected officials for

          4  smaller projects that were not suitable for this

          5  particular process.

          6                 We also consulted with a dozen

          7  community organizations that represent over 80

          8  constituency groups including friends groups, civic

          9  associations, schools and businesses all across the

         10  Bronx.  In addition to meeting with larger borough-

         11  wide groups such as the Bronx River Alliance, we

         12  also met with a number of local neighborhood

         13  organizations including the Friends of Cedar

         14  Playground and the Friends of St. James Park.

         15                 Beyond that, we also met with

         16  organizations who have publicly opposed the

         17  construction of the filtration plant in Van

         18  Cortlandt Park.  Some of them will testify later

         19  today.  They were given the opportunity to be

         20  included in the development of the project list.

         21  Supporting the construction of the filtration plant

         22  in Van Cortlandt Park was not a prerequisite for

         23  joining us in developing that project list.

         24  However, the groups chose not to participate.

         25                 Finally, we worked directly with
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          2  State Senators, Assembly members and City Council

          3  members, officials elected by the people of the

          4  Bronx to represent their interests.  Through daily

          5  interaction with constituents, elected officials

          6  know about the parks in their districts.  They are

          7  also acutely aware of their constituents' concerns

          8  and needs.  They know the frustration community

          9  members experience when a park like Story Playground

         10  needs major renovation at a cost that far exceeds

         11  their total capital allocation for an entire year.

         12  With $7.3 million in Croton funding, we will be able

         13  to undertake and complete the complete renovation of

         14  Story Playground.

         15                 Commission Benepe personally met with

         16  Bronx Council members and Bronx Commissioner Dorothy

         17  Lewandowski met with State Assembly and State Senate

         18  members as well as Borough President Adolfo Carrion.

         19    At each meeting we discussed the thematic areas

         20  and the projects proposed for each of those areas.

         21  Every elected official was given the opportunity to

         22  provide input on the project selection.

         23                 The amount of public participation in

         24  the project selection process is evident not just

         25  from the number of meetings that were held over the
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          2  last year and a half, but also in the wide range of

          3  projects represented on the list.

          4                 Again, Croton mitigation funding

          5  represents a tremendous opportunity for improving

          6  Bronx parks.  It allows us to put children first by

          7  improving playgrounds where our youth play and the

          8  athletic fields where our school teams compete.  It

          9  enables us to bring people closer to the waterfront

         10  with new facilities and greenways, and it expands

         11  our efforts to beautify the City by planting more

         12  trees and flowers.

         13                 The $200 million to be spent on the

         14  Bronx park system will make the borough a

         15  destination for all New Yorkers.  We look forward to

         16  working with you, the community boards and the many

         17  friends of Bronx parks as we move forward with this

         18  plan.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         20  much.  Just to give the audience a nod, to inform

         21  the audience, the Administration is a partner in the

         22  City of New York and they are granted ample time to

         23  give their testimony, and other elected officials

         24  that are in the audience as well will not be working

         25  on a time clock, so they'll be able to give their --
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          2  elected officials in the audience will be given the

          3  opportunity to speak without the limitations of a

          4  time clock, but people that will be testifying will

          5  have to comply with the time clock.  Because of the

          6  amount of individuals that are here today, we will

          7  have to go to a time clock.

          8                 To the Deputy Commissioner, I just

          9  have one question and my colleagues do have

         10  questions as well.  How much does the Bronx, as a

         11  whole, get in capital funding on a yearly basis?

         12  What is the average yearly?

         13                 DEPUTY PARKS COMMISSIONER KAVANAGH:

         14  Over the last five years, the Bronx capital parks

         15  spending has averaged about $20 million.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Over the past

         17  five years in total?

         18                 DEPUTY PARKS COMMISSIONER KAVANAGH:

         19  That's the average.  No, that's the average each

         20  year for the last five years.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay.  So up

         22  until -- every single year the Bronx gets $28

         23  million in total to deal with all of its parks.  How

         24  many parks do we have in the Bronx?  We have our own

         25  Borough Commissioner in the back.

                                                            52

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 DEPUTY PARKS COMMISSIONER KAVANAGH:

          3  We have approximately 380 parks in the Bronx.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  So $28 million

          5  for more than 300 parks in the Bronx.

          6                 DEPUTY PARKS COMMISSIONER KAVANAGH:

          7  The 28 million is an average, it does vary from year

          8  to year.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  It does vary

         10  from year to year.  Okay.  Thank you very much.

         11                 We've also been joined by Council

         12  Member Lew Fidler, Council Member Mike McMahon and

         13  Council Member Joe Addabbo.  And we do have

         14  questions from first Council Member Helen Sears.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you very

         16  much, Mr. Chair.  If I may just say a few words

         17  before I ask my question as it relates to parks and

         18  what our responsibilities are.

         19                 I have great empathy for communities

         20  and certainly I have respect for my colleagues and

         21  their opinions.  So I sit here and I listen and I

         22  speak, asking that anyone recognize that I do have

         23  that sensitivity and the respect.  And certainly,

         24  everyone in the City of New York does not have a

         25  garden and have a backyard, and parks are very, very

                                                            53

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  essential.  We always hear, certainly I did in my

          3  community, when those parks are to be invaded, and

          4  there is a strong outcry about "not in my park".

          5  However, Mr. Chairman, I have to say that in no way

          6  should that cloud our thinking as to what our

          7  responsibilities are for generations to come.  One

          8  of the major things that we must provide is what is

          9  survival for life, and that is water. And as much as

         10  we don't like to do the things that we do within our

         11  communities, when we sit here, besides representing

         12  our communities, we have a responsibility to the

         13  people of the City of New York.  And when I sit in

         14  my chair in the Council chamber, that's exactly what

         15  I'm doing and so do our colleagues.  We think about

         16  our community, but we're also thinking about eight

         17  million people.  So I'm going to really ask that

         18  within the discontent, that somehow you begin to

         19  work out how there can be some harmony with this

         20  situation.

         21                 With that, I would just like to ask,

         22  what do you do for the 800,000 people that you

         23  provide some kind of -- what do you do to ensure

         24  their drinking water now? Because you said you have

         25  800,000 people who are provided by this service.
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          2  What do you do, and what do you being in non

          3  compliance?  What does it cost the City of New York?

          4                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure.  Taking

          5  your first question, it's actually quite timely.

          6  The Croton system, due to color, taste, and

          7  particularly this time of year, is not providing the

          8  level of water quality that New Yorkers should

          9  expect and, for that reason, we turn off the Croton

         10  system.  And we are doing that right now.  Because

         11  of turbidity and color issues for the Croton system,

         12  and then we are supplying, luckily, those users with

         13  Catskill/ Delaware water.  So we are sensitive to

         14  that issue for the Bronx residents in that we would

         15  not provide them, if we had another alternative,

         16  with Croton water.  And we are now turning off on

         17  that system because of that very reason.

         18                 We are currently out of compliance.

         19  We're under a Federal mandate to build this filter

         20  plant and, within that consent decree, there are

         21  milestones that we have to have met and reached.

         22  One critical milestone unfortunately just passed us,

         23  and that is the final regulatory approval for our

         24  preferred site.  Since that date has passed, alone

         25  we have accrued almost $400,000 in penalties.  We've
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          2  yet to pay them, penalties.  If the Council were to

          3  approve this project on September 28th, that amount

          4  would be somewhere in the area of $600,000.

          5                 Going back historically,

          6  unfortunately we have been out of compliance with a

          7  variety of other milestones and, if you were to

          8  tabulate the potential fines levied and then paid by

          9  the City of New York, it would be up six to $10

         10  million.  So the Federal Government, as it should,

         11  takes water quality and the health of New Yorkers

         12  very seriously and has set forth penalties for non

         13  compliance with those important dates.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  How often can

         15  you switch to the Delaware system?  How often can

         16  you close and then switch it?

         17                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Well, right now,

         18  as you might gather, given the significant amount of

         19  rain that we have --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Right.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  -- We have more

         22  than enough water for New Yorkers.  If we were, as

         23  we were two and a half, three years ago, in a

         24  significant drought, that could be a potential long-

         25  term concern.  I don't think it's a significant one.
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          2    DEP and the City benefits from an enormous water

          3  supply system, and we can provide Cat/Del -- I mean,

          4  we can provide Croton water -- Croton users with

          5  Cat/Del water, but there is always a balance that we

          6  need to strike in terms of where we're drawing our

          7  water from and how we bring it down into the City.

          8  Luckily now, with the amount of water that we have,

          9  there are no issues whatsoever with providing

         10  Cat/Del to Croton users, and we have never been in a

         11  situation where we have not been able to provide the

         12  necessary drinking water for the City.

         13                 Nonetheless, as we look forward into

         14  the long- term future, maintaining 290 million

         15  gallons a day out of the Croton system, which we

         16  will be able to do once it's filtered, is an

         17  assurance.  It's like water in the bank that we know

         18  we can always use and won't face those challenges

         19  for maintaining water supplies.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you,

         21  Commissioner.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Next we have

         23  Council Member Addabbo and then we have Council

         24  Member Gennaro and then Council Member Koppell

         25  following.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chairman.  I want to thank the panel for being

          4  here today. Two questions.  First to Commissioner

          5  Ward, with regards to the jobs that would be

          6  created, is there a mechanism that exists with this

          7  plan that would hire qualified local residents in

          8  the Bronx?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  This is something

         10  obviously the DEP takes very seriously.  I would

         11  start only by saying that law prevents DEP from

         12  compelling local contractors to hire certain people.

         13                 Nonetheless, there is a long history

         14  of working with contractors and the trade unions and

         15  people who are involved in women minority

         16  contracting to ensure that they become a part of

         17  that process and, to the greatest extent possible,

         18  local contractors are hiring local residents.  I

         19  have met with labor leaders.  I have met with the

         20  contracting industry, and there is a firm

         21  partnership between both of those groups to bring

         22  the economic benefits of this project right to the

         23  Bronx.  And this Council has DEP's commitment that

         24  we will, through all of this project, bring economic

         25  benefits back into this community.  For example,
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          2  there, you know, in and around that area there will

          3  be construction workers going to local

          4  establishments.  And these are the types of things

          5  that we will develop.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you,

          7  Commissioner.  To the Parks Department Commissioner

          8  Kavanagh and Commissioner Lewandowski, good to see

          9  you.

         10                 How long does the Parks Department

         11  have to wait for the 243 million for funding?  How

         12  long?  What is the time line waiting or getting that

         13  money into the Department of Parks and Recreation?

         14                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  If I could, Liam,

         15  I'll answer the question.  Through an interagency

         16  agreement between DEP and the Parks Department, we

         17  could enter into that immediately.  There would be

         18  little or no delay at all. I would only caution, the

         19  one issue is that we all must face is that there

         20  will be opposition to this project and people have

         21  raised legal concerns with this process.  The cloud

         22  of litigation could potentially delay it if, for

         23  whatever reason, someone raises an objection.  But

         24  practically, DEP, as we always and frequently do,

         25  could enter into an interagency funding agreement
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          2  and transfer this project, this money right away.

          3  And, in fact, in conversations with Liam and

          4  Commissioner Lewandowski and Adrian Benepe, we would

          5  be prepared to do that and many of these projects

          6  could get started right away.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  So we don't

          8  have to wait for the construction to be over or

          9  totally finished? At least have partial funding at

         10  some point?

         11                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  And the

         13  money being allocated to the Department of Parks and

         14  Recreation and then earmarked to the Bronx, is that

         15  done by way of a separate account, does that go into

         16  the General Fund the Parks Department has?

         17  Actually, does that money get earmarked for the

         18  Bronx?

         19                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  It would be

         20  earmarked through this interagency agreement, where

         21  we would set forth the availability of the money.

         22  And just going back, this is money which is coming

         23  from DEP's capital plan.  It would be transferred to

         24  the Parks Department and, as set forth in the MOU,

         25  as you will see, these projects would have to meet
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          2  certain criteria of eligibility in order to be

          3  consistent with Water Financing Authority.  In all,

          4  I would just add, so there's no doubt, all of the

          5  projects that Commissioner Kavanagh has set forth on

          6  the MOU which is before the Council are eligible

          7  today and Bond Council has opined that they are

          8  eligible for funding.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you

         10  very much, Commissioner.  Mr. Chair, thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         12  much.  Thank you.  We have Council Member Oliver

         13  Koppell.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  First of

         15  all, I must say, I am quite surprised at a statement

         16  made on behalf of the Parks Department where it says

         17  Commissioner Benepe personally met with the Bronx

         18  City Council members.  No meeting was held with me,

         19  none, and I really am offended by that statement.

         20  Such a statement should not be made unless accurate,

         21  and no meeting was held with me to discuss the scope

         22  of the project or any individual projects.  The

         23  first I knew about this project was within a few

         24  days from here back when I was given, by Council

         25  staff, a copy of the list of the projects.  So I'm
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          2  really offended by this and would ask an explanation

          3  as to why this statement is made.

          4                 DEPUTY PARKS COMMISSIONER KAVANAGH:

          5  The statement said that he met with Bronx Council

          6  members and that is accurate.  It did not say that

          7  he met with every single Council member, but there

          8  were discussions at a staff level with every single

          9  Council member in the Bronx.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Well, I

         11  don't know which staff members this was discussed

         12  with, it certainly was not discussed with me, and

         13  the implication of the statement is that all the

         14  Council members were met with.  As I said, I want --

         15  I think your statement should not be made in this

         16  manner if you didn't meet with each of the Council

         17  members.

         18                 The other thing, Commissioner, just

         19  one question on the Kensico City tunnel, that's in

         20  your capital plan, is it not?

         21                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  It is partially

         22  funded within the ten- year plan.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  But the

         24  plan, at the current plan it wouldn't be partially

         25  funded if you didn't plan to build it, isn't that
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          2  correct?

          3                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So it may

          5  well or almost -- it's planned to be built whether

          6  or not you build it at Mosholu,  Even if you build

          7  at Mosholu, you're still planning to build that

          8  tunnel, right?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  One would hope.

         10  Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Next we have

         13  Councilwoman Madeline Provenzano.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Thank

         15  you, Mr. Chair.

         16                 I do not sit on this Committee.  I'm

         17  a Council member from the Bronx, and Commissioner

         18  Benepe did discuss this with me and I think, I know

         19  he discussed it with Council Member Baez from the

         20  Bronx and Joel Rivera from the Bronx.  We meet every

         21  year with Commissioner Benepe to discuss our Bronx

         22  projects, which happens to be a very good idea,

         23  something I think all agency heads should do but

         24  don't.  But once a year we sit down and discuss all

         25  of the projects relating to parks in our district,
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          2  and at that time Commissioner Benepe did discuss

          3  some of these issues.

          4                 I'm a big believer in parks.  I

          5  believe parks are for kids.  In my almost seven

          6  years on the Council I've probably given almost $20

          7  million of my Councilmatic funding to parks.  My

          8  Parks Commissioner is here today. Unfortunately, I'm

          9  losing her.  So I truly believe in parks for our

         10  kids.  I believe in putting money into our parks.

         11  The Parks Department is one of the agencies that has

         12  been drastically cut over the years.  That's one of

         13  the reasons that I feel, as a Councilperson, that I

         14  have to supplement them.

         15                 I've listened to the testimony today.

         16    I've gone over this in many discussions we've had

         17  with Commissioner Ward, with the Parks Department,

         18  and I am a big supporter of this.

         19                 As I sit here, I can't even imagine

         20  why anyone would want to take it out of the Bronx.

         21  You're talking about 70 plus projects.  Many of

         22  these areas that the Assistant Commissioner

         23  mentioned are really, really in need of renovation.

         24  You're taking hundreds of jobs out of the Bronx.  If

         25  you read the papers and you look at the stats, you
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          2  know that unemployment is the worst in the Bronx

          3  than any other borough.

          4                 Why would we pay Westchester $6

          5  million in taxes, and that's just a start.  It's a

          6  water treatment plant.  It's not a golf course,

          7  which I am trying to build in my district, and has

          8  been delayed two years because of environmental

          9  litigation we have.

         10                 Some of the problems addressed are

         11  trucks, noise.  I haven't heard any complaints of

         12  serious environmental issues.  It's federally

         13  mandated.  It's on a clock.

         14                 Again, I support this.  I can't vote

         15  on it on this Committee, but I will be voting when

         16  it comes to the Council.  I committed myself to this

         17  project over two years ago when we first started

         18  discussing it.  I stand by my commitment.  I don't

         19  flip- flop depending on the audience. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  At this point in

         21  time I'd like to call Council Member Gennaro to give

         22  a brief question as well.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chairman.  I just have a question based on your

         25  presentation that you made, Commissioner.  In there,
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          2  there was an evaluation or an estimate of the

          3  numbers of jobs that may be created as a result of

          4  this project, and my question is the number of jobs

          5  that were estimated, was that based on the

          6  construction of the project alone or does that

          7  include the jobs that would result from the 200 or

          8  $243 million of parks projects?  Is that kind of --

          9  the jobs estimate, does it include --

         10                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I'm sorry.  Yes,

         11  I understand.  It includes the impact of the parks

         12  as well.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  I see.

         14  Okay.  I just -- I wasn't clear on whether it

         15  included the jobs that would result from the parks

         16  projects as well.

         17                 I just wish also to take this

         18  opportunity to thank Council Member Addabbo for all

         19  of the work that he does with the labor community

         20  and to thank you, Commissioner, for working closely

         21  with the relevant labor leaders to ensure that the

         22  economic impacts that would result from this project

         23  benefit Bronx residents and our own labor community

         24  as well.  So, thank you for your efforts in that

         25  regard and thank you, Joe, for your ongoing very
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          2  constructive partnership with our labor community.

          3  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

          5  much.  Seeing no other questions, on behalf of the

          6  Committee, I'd like to thank all the parties and the

          7  Administration for coming forward, answering our

          8  questions and giving their testimony.  Thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 At this point in time we're going to

         11  be bringing people up in numbers of three so that we

         12  can get through the list and be as time effective as

         13  possible.  So, the first three we'll have will be

         14  Edward Malloy from the Building Construction Trade

         15  Council, Louis Coletti from the Building Trades

         16  Employees Association and Robert Ungar, the legal

         17  counsel to both organizations.

         18                 Gentlemen, just state your name into

         19  the record and proceed with your testimony.  Do you

         20  have any written testimony to hand out to the

         21  members of the Committee?

         22                 PRESIDENT MALLOY:  Yes, Mr. Chairman,

         23  our testimony has been given to the Committee, and

         24  then for the second time we will read an abbreviated

         25  copy.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Also, we're

          3  going to be placing everyone on a three- minute time

          4  clock to get through the meeting as quickly as

          5  possible.  If we can start the clock.

          6                 PRESIDENT MALLOY:  Good morning Mr.

          7  Chairman, members of the Committee. My name is

          8  Edward J. Malloy, President of Building Construction

          9  Trade Council of Greater New York.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Hold on one

         11  second.  We have to get the Sergeant- of- Arms ready

         12  for the time clock very quickly.  I apologize.

         13  We're ready?  Okay.  Start over.

         14                 PRESIDENT MALLOY:  Good morning, Mr.

         15  Chairman, members of the Committee.  My name is

         16  Edward J. Malloy, President of Building Construction

         17  Trades Council of Greater New York, an organization

         18  of affiliated unions representing more than 100,000

         19  working men and women in the five boroughs.  We

         20  appreciate the opportunity to testify in support of

         21  the City Council ratifying the memorandum of

         22  understanding of the $200 million of Bronx parkland

         23  improvements related to siting of the Croton water

         24  filtration facility.

         25                 Last year the Council voted
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          2  overwhelmingly in support of the message for

          3  legislation passed by the Senate and the Assembly to

          4  sign into law by the Governor to allow the Croton

          5  water filtration facility to be sited on the Mosholu

          6  golf course/driving range in the Bronx.  In order to

          7  complete the siting of this facility at this

          8  location, it is required that the Council ratify the

          9  referenced MOU, which has already been signed by the

         10  Mayor, Speaker of the Assembly and Pro Temp of the

         11  Senate.

         12                 No sited facility of this kind in an

         13  area with the density of New York City can have zero

         14  impact on an area of its proximity.  No public works

         15  project or government program in New York City,

         16  particularly under current fiscal and economic

         17  pressures can ignore major cost concerns.  The only

         18  responsible approach to siting an essential public

         19  facility of this importance is to choose the

         20  location which imposes the least possible impact on

         21  the host community while achieving the best possible

         22  cost outcome.

         23                 The Mosholu site is far superior to

         24  others in this regard.  Utilizing Mosholu would cost

         25  an estimated $1.3 billion and create thousands of
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          2  construction jobs.  It would also greatly enhance

          3  the ability to collect millions of dollars of City

          4  sales and income tax revenue by keeping the economic

          5  activity and employment associated with this

          6  facility in New York City borders.

          7                 According to the U.S. Census Bureau,

          8  and contrary to opinion of many self- appointed

          9  experts on the subject with no basis to support

         10  their uninformed contentions, 76% of all

         11  construction workers in New York City live in New

         12  York City.  This commitment of diversity in the

         13  unionized sector of the industry is evidenced by the

         14  fact that 51% of the approximately 7,500 union

         15  apprentices in New York City are minorities.  These

         16  new members of our industry, who are trained at our

         17  expense, represent the future skilled workforce of

         18  New York City.  The unionized sector of our industry

         19  has, furthermore, since year 2001, administered a

         20  landmark Initiative to Construction Skills 2000, to

         21  place 421 graduates of the New York City public high

         22  schools into apprenticeship programs through

         23  September 2004, where these young men and women gain

         24  access to middle class careers with good wages,

         25  health and pension benefits. 84% --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Pardon me, sir.

          3  I apologize.  The time has run out on your

          4  testimony.  We apologize.  You're working on a time

          5  clock.  If there's anyone else on the stage that

          6  would like to give testimony as well, they will be

          7  given three minutes as well.

          8                 MR. COLETTI:  Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chairman. Thanks for the opportunity to speak.  I'm

         10  the other side of the equation and represent over

         11  1,500 contractors who employ on their own 25,000

         12  people in New York City, as well as the 100,000

         13  members of the building trades.

         14                 Basically, I believe there's really

         15  five reasons why we urge you to strongly support the

         16  MOU.  One is legal, two is health related, three is

         17  environmental, four is economic and five is the

         18  quality of life. Legal, the case is simple.  We're

         19  under a Court Order.  It either gets built in

         20  Westchester or New York City.  From a health

         21  perspective you heard the Commissioner of the DEP

         22  talk about how the $243 million in parks can help

         23  with asthma and other health- related issues.

         24  Environmental, we're talking about clean water.

         25  Every New Yorker has a right to clean water. The
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          2  economics, why would we want to build a facility in

          3  Westchester County and let all of the economic

          4  benefits go to someone else?  It would cost more to

          5  build.  We would not gain the economics in terms of

          6  jobs, in terms of tax revenues that are needed.  The

          7  construction industry, by this Council's own report

          8  many, many years ago -- remember Hole in the Middle?

          9    It was the best report I've ever read in my life

         10  that got very little publicity.

         11                 We're going to rebuild the middle

         12  class of this city.  The construction industry and

         13  the unionized construction industry is the only way

         14  we're going to do it. The manufacturing jobs are

         15  gone forever.  The average salary of a unionized

         16  construction worker in this city is $56,000 a year

         17  with a health benefits program, with a pension, an

         18  annuity.  And in terms of the program Mr. Malloy was

         19  outlining, Construction Skills 2000, most of the --

         20  ranking second in terms of kids who are coming out

         21  of our high schools and going into that program, is

         22  the Borough of the Bronx.  So there's a direct

         23  benefit.

         24                 When you look at the economic

         25  benefits that have been derived from the Dormitory
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          2  Authority's project in the Bronx Courthouse,

          3  thousands of jobs have been created for residents,

          4  millions of dollars of tax revenues have come in

          5  because we're using local stores for supplies and

          6  contractors.

          7                 So it makes all the sense in the

          8  world to build this project, A, because we have to

          9   -- I mean, I can see no down side.  Obviously, I

         10  say that with respect for the local residents.

         11  Construction's a messy project.  We can't put it up

         12  on a computer screen and then just drop it to where

         13  we want it to be, but the long- term benefits for

         14  the community, for $243 million of new parks and

         15  open space, the economic benefits, the quality of

         16  life, the improved water quality, I think it's worth

         17  the pain that we have to endure on the short term.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         20  much.  Next we have Bob Ungar as well.

         21                 MR. UNGAR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         22  members of the Committee.  If you will, I'm just

         23  going to finish the last couple of paragraphs of Mr.

         24  Malloy's statement and adopt it as my statement for

         25  today.  Thank you.
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          2                 I want to say that by Council

          3  ratifying the MOU, it will ensure that new members

          4  of the construction industry beginning their trade,

          5  and experienced craftspersons who live in the Bronx

          6   --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Hold on one

          8  second, Mr. Ungar.  We have to set the clock.  There

          9  you go. Go.

         10                 MR. UNGAR:  Okay.  This won't take

         11  three minutes.

         12                 Will ensure that the Bronx and New

         13  York City will share the economic benefits of this

         14  project and will continue -- and will contribute to

         15  the strength and stability of the neighborhoods

         16  where these folks reside, in large part, in the

         17  Borough of the Bronx where the project's taking

         18  place.

         19                 Given the obvious environmental,

         20  fiscal and economic advantages of siting this

         21  facility at Mosholu, we urge the Council to ratify

         22  this MOU and, in addition to addressing this

         23  important environmental and public health issue, for

         24  the Council to stake its claim to the most historic

         25  investment in Bronx parks and open space in our
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          2  time.

          3                 On behalf of Mr. Malloy, we thank you

          4  for your time today and hope that you'll give this a

          5  favorable vote.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

          7  much.  Are there any questions from the Committee

          8  for these gentlemen here today?  Seeing none, thank

          9  you, gentlemen, for your testimony.

         10                 MR. COLETTI:  Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chairman, members of the Committee.

         12                 MR. UNGAR:  Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  At this point in

         14  time we'll be calling up Assembly Member Jeff

         15  Dinowitz and Assembly Member Elect Naomi Rivera.

         16  And as they are elected members of State government,

         17  they will not be held to a time clock.  They'll be

         18  able to give their testimony free from limitations.

         19  So, Sergeant- of- Arms, there will be no clock to

         20  this testimony either.

         21                 ASSEMBLYMAN DINOWITZ:  Okay.  Thank

         22  you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Just introduce

         24  yourself.  State your name and then proceed with

         25  your testimony.
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          2                 ASSEMBLYMAN DINOWITZ:  State

          3  Assemblyman Jeffrey Dinowitz.  I represent the 81st

          4  Assembly District which includes all of Van

          5  Cortlandt Park.  And I just want to start by saying

          6  something that we've said many times before, thank

          7   -- first of all, thanking the Committee for having

          8  this meeting.

          9                 I think we know that had a similar

         10  project been proposed at a point in time to be

         11  constructed in Central Park along Fifth Avenue,

         12  perhaps near the Metropolitan Museum, and even with

         13  the offer of a billion dollars in parks money for

         14  the Borough of Manhattan, I think we know that it

         15  would be DOA, dead on arrival, and I would be home

         16  preparing for Rosh Hashanah instead of being here at

         17  this hearing today on the eve of Rosh Hashanah.

         18                 I want to talk a little bit about the

         19  impact of the plant itself.  We've seen in the

         20  proposal the massive size of this plant, and I think

         21  it's fair to say that the plant itself, let alone

         22  the construction zone, would be somewhere around the

         23  size of Yankee Stadium in terms of its footprint,

         24  and probably deeper than Yankee Stadium.  So, if you

         25  took Yankee Stadium, turned it over and shoved it
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          2  into the ground, it would still be smaller than

          3  what's being proposed to be constructed in Van

          4  Cortlandt Park in the Bronx.

          5                 The communities that surround Van

          6  Cortlandt Park are wonderful communities, including

          7  the Norwood community, which would be most directly

          8  impacted, the heavily minority and not so well off

          9  community of Norwood, as well as the community of

         10  Woodlawn, which would be very much impacted because

         11  of the huge amount of truck traffic that would come

         12  on and off the Major Deegan every few minutes, all

         13  day long, every day, five or six days a week, every

         14  year for years to come.  The community of Van

         15  Cortlandt Village plus the Bronx High School of

         16  Science, perhaps the nation's number one public high

         17  school, because right across the street from that

         18  school, which probably nobody would want to send

         19  their children to anymore, knowing the huge

         20  construction process that would be taking place over

         21  there, would be heavily, heavily impacted.

         22                 So the construction process, which is

         23  going to last for many years, will undoubtedly have

         24  a devastating effect on every community that is

         25  adjacent to the south and east sides of Van
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          2  Cortlandt Park, plus the Jerome Park Reservoir.

          3                 I can tell you that last year when

          4  representatives of DEP were attempting to solicit

          5  support from Bronx legislators, I don't recall them

          6  ever talking about the impact on and around the

          7  Jerome Park Reservoir, and they didn't talk about it

          8  because I think they were hiding it since they knew

          9  about it.  Many of the Assembly members and Senators

         10  didn't, although I did suggest that that's exactly

         11  what would have happened.

         12                 The cost of this project, I think, is

         13  not quite as simple as Commissioner Ward had

         14  suggested.  Our local paper, The Riverdale Press did

         15  a very in- depth analysis of the cost and it

         16  certainly suggests that the real cost would be

         17  greater in Van Cortlandt Park than it would at

         18  Eastview.  In fact, the Eastview site, for those of

         19  you who've taken the time to look at it, is a city-

         20  owned industrial site purchased for the specific

         21  purpose of constructing a filtration plant in an

         22  isolated area of Westchester County where nobody

         23  lives and nobody would be directly impacted.  And

         24  why in the world we would want to build this in an

         25  extraordinarily densely populated community on City
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          2  parkland where it directly affects people in the

          3  high asthma rate community is just beyond me,

          4  especially since it very likely will be more costly

          5  to build in the City.  And the EIS doesn't and can't

          6  take into account some of the costs which are very

          7  difficult to quantify, such as the impact on

          8  people's lives, such as how much it's going to cost

          9  in health care costs for those who are adversely

         10  affected because of even higher asthma rates.  So I

         11  think it's fair to say that it's going to cost more

         12  to build in Van Cortlandt Park rather than less.

         13                 The Commissioner also referred to

         14  restoring Van Cortlandt Park.  Now, for those of you

         15  who've taken the time to go to Van Cortlandt Park,

         16  and I know a few members of the Council have, to not

         17  only look at the proposed site but to look at the

         18  northeast corner of the park, I don't consider that

         19  a restoration of a site that was taken away 30 years

         20  ago.  Perhaps the Commissioner was unclear, maybe he

         21  meant it would be restored in say 40 or 50 years,

         22  but certainly there's been no real restoration and

         23  no real public ability to use the northeast corner

         24  of the park where they built many years.

         25                 In addition, I think it's very fair
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          2  to say that given the age we live in with threats of

          3  terrorism and concern about terrorism, that some

          4  might suggest that it's probably not a good idea to

          5  hit golf balls and whatever else directly above our

          6  water supply, and there could very well be in the

          7  future attempts to say we can't go back into that

          8  part of the park because it's a threat to our

          9  security and to our water supply.  Whereas, on the

         10  Eastview site it would be much easier to secure our

         11  water supply.

         12                 I'm also very concerned about jobs,

         13  as I think most people in this room are, and I

         14  raised that issue in the past.  I think many of my

         15  colleagues who voted for the bill that would allow

         16  the alienation of parkland when they voted at 3:00

         17  in the morning on the last day of the legislative

         18  session last year, voted for it partially because

         19  they felt that it would provide jobs for Bronx

         20  sites.  And last year when it was discussed, I

         21  believe numbers, a thousand, thousands of jobs were

         22  talked about. The Commissioner today mentioned 600

         23  jobs, but there's no way to absolutely guarantee

         24  that Bronx sites would get those jobs.  Of course,

         25  if there were jobs, we want to see them go to Bronx
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          2  sites, but the Commissioner has said in the past and

          3  he said again today, there is no legal way to ensure

          4  that Bronx sites or even people who live in the City

          5  who pay City income taxes would get those jobs.  So

          6  the number of jobs that actually might go to City

          7  residents might be very limited.  We just don't know

          8  the answer to that.

          9                 The alienation bill 8069C which, as I

         10  said, was passed at 3:00 in the morning on the last

         11  night of the legislative session in '03 was an

         12  unusual park alienation bill because it did not

         13  provide for replacement parkland.  I have voted on,

         14  almost always against, park alienation bills in the

         15  Assembly over the past 11 years, and I'm sure that

         16  most, if not all of them, provide for parkland to

         17  replace the parkland.  That bill, which was passed,

         18  took 48 acres, 48 acres of parkland.  That's

         19  approximately the size of 40 football fields.

         20  Forty- eight acres of parkland.  The Bronx as far as

         21  I know is not getting 48 acres of new parkland.

         22  Certainly, the community that's directly impacted by

         23  this project is not getting new parkland.

         24                 The $200 million, I'm sure there were

         25  many discussions which took place with various
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          2  people and groups. I know I had told my speaker that

          3  if indeed we ever got $200 million, my only wish is

          4  that all or most of the money go into Van Cortlandt

          5  Park or the communities immediately surrounding Van

          6  Cortlandt Park.  But the fact is, there really

          7  wasn't real community input.  As far as I know,

          8  there was not one hearing in the Bronx or anywhere

          9  else on how to spend that money.  None of the

         10  community boards were consulted.  None of the

         11  community boards had an opportunity to have a

         12  hearing or have any input into that decision. Yes,

         13  there were meetings with selected elected officials

         14  and certain community groups, but when you're

         15  talking about $200 million, not to have an open

         16  public process, but rather to do it in the back

         17  rooms, doesn't to me seem the best way of providing

         18  for good government and providing for our parks.

         19                 The legislation also provides that

         20  creating parkland out of the Jerome Park Reservoir

         21  shall be given due consideration.  Now, I recognize

         22  that due consideration is a very vague term, but I

         23  haven't heard anybody, including Commissioner Ward

         24  or Commissioner Benepe, say what that due

         25  consideration was.  But if they gave it due
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          2  consideration, they obviously rejected the idea.

          3  But that was certainly part of the legislation which

          4  the City failed to deal with.

          5                 I also note from the -- to follow up

          6  on something Council Member Koppell mentioned, I

          7  note from the Parks' representative's testimony,

          8  where it says we, "We work directly with the State

          9  Senators and State Assembly members and City Council

         10  members, officials elected by the people of the

         11  Bronx to represent their interests", that certainly

         12  implies that the Parks Department spoke with all of

         13  the Council members, Assembly members and State

         14  Senators in the Bronx, and that implication just is

         15  not true.  In fact, it's a lie, because they

         16  certainly never spoke to me or my office.  I don't

         17  know why they would, I only represent Van Cortlandt

         18  Park, but that's certainly misleading, and that's

         19  really not the way that a City agency should be

         20  conducting itself.

         21                 The process of dealing with this $200

         22  million, which I believe may be of questionable

         23  legality anyway, that may be tested in the courts at

         24  some point, is certainly a flawed process, and it

         25  would certainly be premature for the City Council to
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          2  ratify a closed back room, behind- the- scenes

          3  process on money which would use water bond money --

          4  on a bill which would use water bond money to pay

          5  for parks projects.

          6                 Do we want $200 million in parks

          7  projects in the Bronx?  Of course we do.  I'm not

          8  even clear on whether the $200 million is in

          9  addition to the 28 million that the Commissioner

         10  said we get every year.  Is this new money?  Is this

         11  replacement money?  Are we really going to see $200

         12  million in new money for the Bronx that we would

         13  have never otherwise gotten, or is this just money

         14  that will replace other money?  Is it real, and over

         15  how many years will we receive it?  There are too

         16  many unanswered questions. Neither Commissioner Ward

         17  nor the Parks Deputy Commissioner addressed that

         18  issue today.

         19                 I really cannot imagine how the

         20  Council can responsibly vote to ratify the MOU, not

         21  having been given all that information.  I,

         22  therefore, would urge you to reject it.  Thank you

         23  very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Next we have

         25  Assemblywoman Elect Naomi Rivera, but since you're
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          2  not officially elected, since the general election

          3  has not taken place, we're going to have to put you

          4  on a three- minute time clock.  Naomi.

          5                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN ELECT RIVERA:  Thank

          6  you, Mr. Chairman.  I am here in solidarity with the

          7  80th Assembly District of the Bronx as a candidate

          8  for the 80th Assembly District.

          9                 I have been consistent in my

         10  opposition to the construction of the filtration

         11  park being built in Van Cortlandt Park.  I have

         12  expressed my opposition publicly over the last three

         13  months when my opinion has been solicited.  As a

         14  result of last night, I have been officially

         15  nominated as the Democratic candidate for the 80th

         16  Assembly District and a soon to be legislator.

         17                 I know and recognize that there are

         18  two ways to vote on this matter.  One, you can vote

         19  your conscience; two, you can vote for your

         20  constituents, our children, our families and our

         21  seniors.  I have no qualms.  If the matter came

         22  before me it would be easy.  I would vote no on both

         23  grounds because it is the right thing to do.  I

         24  recognize the harmful impact the filtration will

         25  have on my soon-to-be-district.  Eastview is the
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          2  common-sense place and, although I recognize there

          3  are different opinions in the Rivera dinner table, I

          4  am clear in my opposition and I urge you to say "not

          5  in my backyard".  I thank you for the opportunity,

          6  Mr. Chairman, to express my testimony before the

          7  Committee.  I would like to wish our Committee

          8  members and the good people in the audience a happy

          9  new year.  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Naomi, don't

         11  worry about it, you're still welcome to dinner

         12  tonight.

         13                 Are there any questions on behalf of

         14  the Committee members for Assembly Member Jeff Klein

         15  (sic) and Candidate Naomi -- I'm sorry, I apologize

         16  about that, Jeff Dinowitz.  We just had a race

         17  yesterday and Jeff Klein was on my mind, so I

         18  apologize.  Jeff Dinowitz and Assembly candidate

         19  Naomi Rivera.  Are there any questions?

         20                 Council Member Koppell?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I just would

         22  like to ask this question of Assemblyman Dinowitz.

         23  In your district, is it your view that the

         24  overwhelming majority of people oppose approval of

         25  this MOU even though it means many millions of
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          2  dollars for parks?

          3                 ASSEMBLYMAN DINOWITZ:  I think people

          4  in my district have clearly expressed their opinion,

          5  and they are of the opinion that the parks' money

          6  does not make up for the devastating impact of the

          7  filtration plant.  And while people recognize that

          8  we may very well need a filtration plant, they also

          9  understand that there's an alternative location

         10  where we can build it, have our clean water and not

         11  have the adverse impact on the community,

         12  particularly in the immediate community.  So the

         13  answer is yes, people are overwhelmingly opposed to

         14  it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I would just

         16  ask Ms. Rivera, who has just spent a lot of time on

         17  the streets of the district she hopes to represent,

         18  whether her view is that people, if asked, would

         19  reject the parks improvements, some of which go into

         20  the district she hopes to represent. If they

         21  understood that the parks improvements were

         22  contingent on the filtration plant, would they still

         23  say no to the filtration plant?

         24                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN ELECT RIVERA:

         25  Absolutely.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

          3  much.  Very quickly, we have Council Member Gale

          4  Brewer and Council Member Maria Baez.  Gale Brewer

          5  first.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Jeff, I did

          7  go to Westchester to walk, and I walked through your

          8  parks, and I'm not expert on this and I'm not from

          9  the Bronx, but I know that it's a learning process.

         10  But my question is, in terms of the jobs from your

         11  understanding, is it your understanding that people

         12  in different labor organizations could work in the

         13  Westchester site or the in the Bronx site? Is that

         14  why we're not clear on the 600 number, just in terms

         15  of the opportunity?  Is there some way that people

         16  from the Bronx could also work in Westchester, for

         17  instance, and still get those kinds of numbers?  I

         18  know it's a hard question to answer.  I just --

         19                 ASSEMBLY MEMBER DINOWITZ:  Well, I'm

         20  not the expert on how the jobs would be allocated

         21  should the plant be built in Westchester, but it's

         22  my understanding that should the plant be built in

         23  Westchester, it would not mean that New York City

         24  residents couldn't get the jobs any more than it

         25  means that New York City residents would get the
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          2  jobs if it were built in the Bronx.  I should just

          3  emphasize again that if it were built in Van

          4  Cortlandt Park, yes, the workers may go on Jerome

          5  Avenue and buy their lunch and, you know, pay a

          6  little sales tax or whatever if they purchase a few

          7  things in the stores there, but if they don't live

          8  in the City, as far as I understand it, because some

          9  people -- because we gave away the commuter tax,

         10  they're not paying an income tax.  So where is the

         11  great revenue enhancement that the City would get

         12  from these jobs?  We get the revenue by people who

         13  pay income taxes, who live in the City.  And since

         14  there's no guarantee that those jobs would go to

         15  people who live in the City, I'm not sure how much

         16  of a job development opportunity this really is.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ:  My question is

         19  for Assemblyman Dinowitz, and I certainly want to

         20  thank you for sharing your concerns with us.  Are

         21  you saying the filtration plant should not be built

         22  in the Bronx?  Because I know at the very beginning

         23  of this you were supportive of it being built in the

         24  Harlem River site, which is my district.  Has

         25  something changed since then?
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          2                 ASSEMBLY MEMBER DINOWITZ:  Well,

          3  Council Member Baez, you're actually incorrect in

          4  saying that.  I've consistently stated my opposition

          5  to building it in either of the locations in the

          6  Bronx.  In fact, there was a point in time when we

          7  thought it would no longer be built in Van Cortlandt

          8  Park, when the Harlem River site was put on the

          9  table, and I know that I was the first elected

         10  official in the Bronx to publicly oppose building it

         11  in the Bronx and building it at that site, rather.

         12  Because I testified and spoke at a Community Board 7

         13  meeting held at the Mosholu Montefiore Community

         14  Center in opposition to building it at the Harlem

         15  River site, and I do believe you were already

         16  elected to the Council and I don't believe any

         17  representative of that area had at that point in

         18  time spoke on it.  I was the first to oppose it

         19  there.  I still oppose it.  So, I'm happy to have

         20  the opportunity to correct what you just said.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  I have one

         22  question.  It will be directed toward Assembly

         23  Member Jeff Klein -- Jeff Dinowitz.  I apologize.

         24                 ASSEMBLY MEMBER DINOWITZ:  You have

         25  Klein on your mind.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Klein's on my

          3  mind.

          4                 Very quickly, since this is a Federal

          5  mandate coming down from EPA, and we have to -- we

          6  are obliged to follow the Federal mandate that we

          7  are given, we do have a Federal delegation.  I

          8  understand you're the State, we're the City, we

          9  cannot override the mandate from the Federal

         10  Government.  We have a Federal delegation.   I'm

         11  interested in knowing what efforts have been put

         12  forward by the Federal delegation to prevent this

         13  filtration plant from getting --

         14                 ASSEMBLY MEMBER DINOWITZ:  Well, I

         15  think it's probably only fair that you direct those

         16  questions directly to Senator Clinton, Senator

         17  Schumer and Congressman Engle, who represent the

         18  area.  I know that Congressman Engle has been a very

         19  staunch opponent of building it at that site in Van

         20  Cortlandt Park, but I certainly wouldn't want to

         21  characterize the positions of any of the three of

         22  them. They should speak for themselves, obviously.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Because I've

         24  been actually raising that question for the past two

         25  years now and I haven't gotten a real answer into
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          2  what the Federal delegation has done.  And I'm very

          3  concerned because that is their jurisdiction.  It's

          4  not our jurisdiction.  I'm interested in knowing

          5  what they've --

          6                 ASSEMBLY MEMBER DINOWITZ:  Well, the

          7  mandates of the EPA is certainly the Federal

          8  jurisdiction, but much of this, what's in the

          9  Federal jurisdiction is that they have stated and

         10  the City has signed the Consent Decree, that we have

         11  to build a filtration plant.  Certainly not in a

         12  particular location.  That's up to the local

         13  government to decide.  The State's role, the State

         14  Legislature's role was to allow the construction in

         15  Van Cortlandt Park by allowing 48 acres of the park

         16  to be sold off by the City for $200 million, and now

         17  it's up to you guys on the City Council to make a

         18  decision.  So, it's in your --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  And girls.

         20                 ASSEMBLY MEMBER DINOWITZ:  You guys

         21  in the generic sense, it's up to you all to decide

         22  whether or not this project, as I said larger than

         23  Yankee Stadium, should be built in Van Cortlandt

         24  Park, especially without the Bronx getting

         25  additional park.  And the Bronx will lose, as far as
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          2  I could see, a net of 48 acres of parkland.  We may

          3  get a little bit of green streets here and green

          4  streets there, but we're not getting the parks.

          5  We're getting money for neighborhoods all over the

          6  Bronx, which is wonderful, but mostly not for the

          7  neighborhood which really has the impact. I mean,

          8  there are only two areas which have the impact, the

          9  northwest Bronx plus Hunts Point, which is where all

         10  the gunk that's going to come out of the filtration

         11  plant eventually is being dumped into when the plant

         12  is up and running.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         14  much.  Are there any other questions?  Seeing none

         15   --

         16                 ASSEMBLY MEMBER DINOWITZ:  Thank you

         17  very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  We now have

         19  Kathryn Wylde, Partnership for New York City, and we

         20  also have Frank McArdle, General Partnership

         21  Association of New York.  And since we're going to

         22  be bundling the people together in the interest of

         23  time, we're also going to call up Paul Sawyer from

         24  Friends of Van Cortlandt Park.  We will be having

         25  the three- minute time clock for each of the
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          2  individuals testifying.  Thank you.  Will you choose

          3  who goes first.

          4                 PRESIDENT WYLDE:  Thank you.  I'll go

          5  first. Thank you, Chairman Rivera and members of the

          6  Council.  I'm going to speak very briefly- I've a

          7  written statement that's being distributed- on the

          8  partnership that represents the City's business

          9  leadership and its largest employers.  We have great

         10  respect for and a history of working closely with

         11  the process of land use review as it relates to

         12  community input for important projects, and we

         13  actually think this project has been handled very

         14  well in that regard.

         15                 We think that there are some projects

         16  where the interests of the City's economy and the

         17  City as a whole override local community interests,

         18  and I think that the safety and reliability of our

         19  water supply is certainly one of those issues.

         20                 We have, for the last two years,

         21  closely followed the work of DEP in their analysis

         22  of the various sites and alternatives for dealing

         23  with the Federal compliance.  We support this

         24  project.  We believe they have done a thorough and

         25  responsible job for coming up with a solution that
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          2  is the best for the City as a whole.  We respect the

          3  concerns of local officials, but we do feel that

          4  this is an essential project that should proceed

          5  immediately, and we urge you to approve the MOU.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

          8  much.  Hopefully, everybody will follow in your time

          9  effectiveness and efficiency over here.  Next we

         10  have Frank McArdle.

         11                 MR. McARDLE:  Yes.  My name is Frank

         12  McArdle. I'm the managing director of the General

         13  Contractors Association of New York.  We speak in

         14  support of the project, as we have consistently.  We

         15  believe the Department has done an effective job in

         16  meeting the needs of the community in the Bronx.

         17  From the construction perspective, they have spent

         18  time on the issues of traffic and dust mitigation

         19  and the like in a way few other projects have seen,

         20  and we commend them for that.

         21                 Two questions have to be addressed, I

         22  think, that have been raised here today.  One of

         23  them gets to the question of the jobs.  One cannot

         24  guarantee that the jobs go to any particular group,

         25  whether it's in the Bronx or elsewhere, but it's
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          2  clear that the major efforts that we are committed

          3  to maximize the number of jobs that go to Bronx

          4  residents.  And in this project we see the

          5  opportunity to develop careers for people at a time

          6  when New York City will be looking for more and more

          7  construction workers to replace those who are aging

          8  out and retiring out of our workforce. Right now,

          9  the average age of a construction worker is well

         10  over 45 years old.  With a project like this, with a

         11  structure that relates us to the four vocational

         12  educational schools, CGE schools in the Bronx, we

         13  think we can in fact maximize the opportunities for

         14  people to have extraordinarily successful and

         15  productive careers in construction jobs that in the

         16  union sector pay quite substantially.

         17                 Were this project to be in

         18  Westchester, the Westchester locals who support its

         19  location in Westchester would in fact be the source

         20  of the labor for the project, and they would recruit

         21  from the communities they recruit from in

         22  Westchester and north and west of Westchester.  They

         23  don't do their recruiting, to any great extent, in

         24  the City of New York.  That's not their pool.  They

         25  have a geographic area they cover and that's where
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          2  they recruit.  There's no question that if this

          3  project is built in Westchester, New York City will

          4  lose the substantial payroll benefit that we see.

          5  There's probably $800 million worth of payroll

          6  effort coming out of this project directly.  We

          7  think the job count is much more substantial than

          8  Commissioner Ward has mentioned.  We see, quite

          9  frankly, over the course of the construction,

         10  somewhere close to a thousand jobs a year on this

         11  project, substantial local supplier benefits as

         12  well, and we see this as a substantial plus for you.

         13                 We also see that there are

         14  environmental issues that have to be met during

         15  construction, and we are committed to meeting them.

         16  I sit on the National Health & Safety Fund for the

         17  laborers.  We are committing to studying this

         18  project and asthma in the immediate community so

         19  that we can in fact both immediately detect and

         20  measure the impact on the community.  We see that as

         21  something that will have a long- term benefit for

         22  the community.  We support the project.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         24  much, Mr. McArdle.  Paul Sawyer?

         25                 MR. SAWYER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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          2    First off, let me respond to something that the

          3  Parks Department said earlier.  Yes, there was a

          4  meeting between the Friends of Van Cortlandt Park

          5  and the Parks Department; however, we didn't know

          6  what it was about.  They invited us down there. They

          7  didn't give us an agenda.  We walked in and they

          8  threw us a list, and they said, "This is what we're

          9  doing."

         10                 As a representative of the Friends of

         11  Van Cortlandt Park, yes, there would be tremendous

         12  improvements to Van Cortlandt Park, but not on the

         13  backs of the community, not on the backs of children

         14  who already have asthma.  And the asthma issue will

         15  become even greater with the dust that is in the

         16  air.  I believe many of the members who are from the

         17  Bronx know that asthma is one of the biggest issues

         18  that we are facing throughout the entire borough.

         19  And the argument that parks, improving parks over a

         20   -- and if you look at the list, if you look at the

         21  list specifically, some of those projects are as

         22  long as four to five years where parks will be

         23  closed.  They will be shut down, as well as the

         24  overall maintenance issue.

         25                 I quickly want to touch on three
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          2  things.  The security, in our opinion, is one of the

          3  biggest issues. Security and zoning are two of the

          4  biggest issues facing this particular project.

          5  Right now, water tunnel number three, which is in

          6  Van Cortlandt Park, across the street from a lot of

          7  single- family homes in Woodlawn, has an armed guard

          8  in front of the actual water tunnel.  Furthermore,

          9  if this plant is built in Van Cortlandt Park, we are

         10  not talking about a tunnel where water is simply

         11  sliding through, we're talking about an active

         12  factory.  We're not talking about something where,

         13  as Commissioner Ward has said in the past, "Oh,

         14  we've done many projects under parks". Nothing like

         15  this has ever been built in any park in New York

         16  City.  It sets a terrible precedent, and each

         17  Council member who sits across from me, if this goes

         18  through and if this happens, you best believe each

         19  and every piece of green space within your district

         20  is going to be up for grabs. It's a mere fact.

         21                 Lastly, in terms of the security, we

         22  could end up, if the Homeland Security Advisor

         23  decides, with essentially an encampment around the

         24  area and around the proposed filtration plant.  Do

         25  you understand what I'm saying?  We could end up
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          2  with floodlights and guards around an area that is

          3  supposed to be a park, where people are supposed to

          4  be hitting golf balls on top of.

          5                 Lastly, I just want to say to each

          6  member of this Committee, to this Committee and to

          7  each member of the City Council who has to vote on

          8  this, as Councilwoman Gale Brewer did, you need to

          9  take a tour.  You need to see the area that is

         10  Eastview and you need to see the community that is

         11  right across the street from Van Cortlandt Park.

         12  There is no comparison between the two.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         14  much.  I just have a very quick question.

         15                 Obviously, asthma is one of the

         16  biggest issues that we face in the Bronx --

         17                 MR. SAWYER:  Correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  -- In of itself.

         19  I mean, we have sound views that are obviously very

         20  effective, and asthma in the entire Bronx is very

         21  high. Now, we did hear testimony from the

         22  Commissioner that they're going to be taking every

         23  single step possible to mitigate the concerns by

         24  ensuring that they pat down to prevent the dust from

         25  rising into the air and by hosing down the trucks to
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          2  make sure they don't bring the dust into the

          3  communities and by using low sulphur fuels, which

          4  are more environmentally friendly.  Now, these are

          5  measures going to be put in place to minimize the

          6  possible effects.  And also, if you looked at the

          7  MOU, which I'm pretty sure you have --

          8                 MR. SAWYER:  Oh, I went through it.

          9  It doesn't even add up to $243 million.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  You see that

         11  about $13 million is going to be utilized to plant

         12  trees within the Borough of the Bronx, and we all

         13  know that trees are what's called a natural filter

         14  of air pollutants and contaminants in the air.  And

         15  this has possible long- term effects.  Now, if --

         16  and we will monitor to make sure the DEP is living

         17  up to their contractural obligations to make sure

         18  that we do minimize the amount of sediment in the

         19  air, to make sure that there is not a large amount

         20  of dust going into the air, because we are very

         21  concerned about the asthma issue within the Bronx.

         22  We want to make sure that we do everything within

         23  our power to make sure we do not aggravate the

         24  situation.

         25                 MR. SAWYER:  Can I just respond to
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          2  that?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Of course.

          4                 MR. SAWYER:  Some of my colleagues

          5  who are against the plant will testify that with all

          6  they're promising to do, it really will not make a

          7  difference. There is a letter from the chief doctor

          8  in charge of asthma at Montefiore Hospital that

          9  essentially says regardless of whatever is tried, in

         10  particulate matter, matter that was very similar to

         11  the matter that was in the air after 9/11, will be

         12  in the air the same way.  And I'm going to let those

         13  particular people address that matter, but we know

         14  for a fact that some of the top experts in the

         15  Bronx, Montefiore Hospital, say there's no way in

         16  the world you're going to be able to even cut down

         17  at the level it needs to be cut down and not

         18  aggravate people in terms of the asthma.  That's a

         19  fact.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Gentlemen, thank

         21  you very much.  I believe Gale Brewer has a

         22  question.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  It was that

         24   -- Frank, in all of your experience, I know you

         25  have a great deal of experience in large
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          2  construction sites, how does one deal with this

          3  patting down?  Is it possible to do this on such a

          4  large project?  Obviously, we're all coming out of

          5  the World Trade Center panic.  Today's Times has a

          6  story about the Deutch Bank building.  The concerns

          7  that are raised, I don't know if they're able to be

          8  dealt with.  So this is not the same.  You're not

          9  dealing with the same toxins.  But is it possible to

         10  do such a patting down for such a large project?

         11                 MR. McARDLE:  Number one, this is not

         12  like Ground Zero, and let's begin with that.  This

         13  is the removal of bedrock to create the underground

         14  facility analogous to what is done in the City of

         15  New York in bedrock every time that we construct

         16  highrise buildings in Manhattan.  And as the

         17  Councilwoman knows, right across from where I live,

         18  one was created to create Symphony Space in the

         19  building as we know it now, and others are created

         20  routinely.  We do have techniques to control dust.

         21  When you blast, you have blast mats that are

         22  intended to maintain some semblance of control over

         23  the flying materials.  And the standards on dust

         24  control are being ratcheted up, you know,

         25  continuously.  We would expect, again based on what
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          2  we've learned at Ground Zero and elsewhere, and with

          3  the continuous monitoring of what's happening, and I

          4  want to go back to that point, which is important,

          5  continuous monitoring and response that we will do

          6  as best a job on dust control on this project as has

          7  been done in the City of New York on any

          8  construction project that I'm aware of.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Just one more

         10  question, the diesel trucks that come and go, there

         11  will be a lot of them.  Can they -- is there such a

         12  thing, I know this is very naive, as a natural gas

         13  truck?

         14                 MR. McARDLE:  You do have natural gas

         15  CNG fuel trucks used elsewhere in the United States.

         16  They've been used in southern California where you

         17  do have particularly stringent air quality controls

         18  in the southern California air quality district.

         19  They have not been used in this marketplace.  We

         20  would expect, and we were just kind of talking about

         21  that earlier, that the use of ultra low sulphur

         22  diesel in these trucks will have a comparable impact

         23  and, in fact, the fueling of the trucks and the

         24  fueling of the equipment with ultra low sulphur

         25  diesel does have substantial impact just with the
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          2  fueling.  To that you then add the catalytic control

          3  equipment that further eliminates the pollution that

          4  we now associate with those kinds of vehicles.

          5                 So we would expect, again, on a

          6  project of this size, that you would have from the

          7  perspective of the trucks, the kind of standards

          8  applied in the Bronx that we would apply in

          9  Manhattan and tend to apply in lower Manhattan and

         10  everywhere in the City of New York on ultra low

         11  sulphur diesel.  That's where you have to go.  And

         12  again, you go back to what was learned and has been

         13  learned at Ground Zero:  The washing down of trucks,

         14  the control of the dust as it moves off, control

         15  over the routing of the trucks.  I mean, one of the

         16  issues that people get very concerned about is can

         17  you control the routing of the trucks.  They, in

         18  fact, imposed GPS controls on the trucks at Ground

         19  Zero and, with the exception of I think kind of the

         20  first night or so, which somebody decided to stop at

         21  his girlfriend's house on the way back on a trip,

         22  those trucks followed established routes.  In

         23  general, people don't allow trucks to flow off

         24  routes because they want a steady pattern and

         25  control over their trucking.  And so in this regard,
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          2  again, with the mitigation that's been proposed for

          3  233rd Street, we consider this site to be a good

          4  site at which to control these kinds of effects on

          5  the adjacent community. There's no reason why trucks

          6  should ever go south of the project limits in that

          7  regard and, quite frankly, this is a project,

          8  because of its proximity to the Transit facility,

          9  will, in fact, encourage people to come and go from

         10  the job site as they do in Manhattan, largely on

         11  mass transit.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Is that all?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  It's good

         14  enough for Frank McArdle.  He's very good at what he

         15  does.  I don't always agree, but I would think

         16  carefully.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Next we have

         18  Councilwoman Helen Sears, then Council Member Oliver

         19  Koppell.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chair. Actually, I just wish to say to Mr. Sawyer,

         22  you should come into Flushing Meadow Park and take a

         23  tour, because I don't think there's -- I don't think

         24  there's any difference between the Bronx or Queens

         25  or Jackson Heights, Elmhurst and Corona to my
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          2  district, and we've got that under development and

          3  have been for some time.

          4                 I think I should say first that I

          5  support the MOU and, certainly, when it's time to do

          6  so, I will be voting for it.  The fact is that my

          7  areas in my communities in the end had to recognize

          8   -- and by the way, I serve on the Health Committee,

          9  and I'm very sensitive to the health indices and the

         10  problems that arise and, certainly, if you look at

         11  them you will see that within my districts pulmonary

         12  disorders are extremely high.  But at the same time,

         13  I happen to believe that water filtration is

         14  essential, essential, and I don't understand how

         15  people -- and we've heard DEP talk about what it is

         16  not to have this filtration working properly.  Water

         17  is a matter of life and death. Nobody likes invasion

         18  of our parks and I've said that earlier and,

         19  certainly, we didn't like it in Flushing Meadow, but

         20  I think that every individual has a responsibility

         21  for everybody else.  I really believe that. And I

         22  think that when people sit here -- and I would be

         23  remiss if I didn't say this because I do take issue

         24  with some of the comments, it is as if members of

         25  this Committee are insensitive to not only the
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          2  health problems but to seniors, to children, and

          3  that is an outrage because we do everything we can

          4  to ensure the safety, the health, the economic

          5  stability, the education of this city.  And it isn't

          6  easy for us to have to balance all these challenges

          7  but, in the end, sir, we have to do that, and

          8  legislators have to make touch decisions.  And what

          9  I really suggest is that you really work with the

         10  groups because we're here talking about jobs and

         11  they're essential.  We're talking about the money

         12  coming into parks.  But what is most important is

         13  that you recognize the mitigation and that you get

         14  the best that you can get.

         15                 We've had to do dust.  Flushing

         16  Meadow didn't come through osmosis and it's not

         17  being developed through osmosis.  It's being

         18  developed through hard rock.  It's being developed

         19  through dust in the air.  It's being developed

         20  through everything.  But you know what the priority

         21  is?  Clean water.

         22                 I was up in Olive when the

         23  Commissioner was speaking, and I was up near

         24  Kingston, and I see New York City DEP and what we

         25  are paying for what we have to do from Kingston, New
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          2  York.  And I think, sir, that we have to recognize

          3  that New York City and its growing rate and its

          4  urbanness and the incredible responsibilities we

          5  have -- you and I wouldn't be drinking water we're

          6  drinking today if people didn't make sacrifices 30

          7  and 40 years ago, you know. And we need that, we

          8  need that.

          9                 I just want to say that I think all

         10  of us have to pull together and to recognize that

         11  all of us have responsibilities, and it's not saying

         12  we ignore everybody in this room.  We all have a

         13  responsibility, and I think we all have to join

         14  hands to meet those responsibilities.

         15                 MR. SAWYER:  I simply ask that you

         16  come take a tour, Councilwoman, that's it.  It's

         17  called simply come see the site, it's that simple.

         18  It's less than an hour. Furthermore, I respect the

         19  fact that you, you know, have to -- you all have

         20  tough decisions to make, but there is an option.

         21  That's the problem.  There is an option, and it

         22  seems like somebody hasn't read, somebody hasn't

         23  done all the information.  Somebody has not gone

         24  through and read everything that is in that SEIS,

         25  and my colleagues will speak to that and they may
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          2  even change your mind or at least get you to ask

          3  some very serious questions about the way this has

          4  been put before the City Council and the way the

          5  whole thing is being financed.  That's all we're

          6  asking. Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I don't think

          8  Westchester's an option.

          9                 MR. SAWYER:  Well, take a tour.

         10  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Council Member

         12  Koppell?  Thank you very much, Helen.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:   I don't

         14  want to get in a debate here.

         15                 Mr. McArdle, I do appreciate the

         16  issue that's been talked about, and you were more

         17  precise than anybody has been and I've been at all

         18  the hearings about the jobs issue as it relates to

         19  locals, between Westchester and New York.  We're not

         20  talking about not building the plant.  It's going to

         21  be built, Westchester or New York.  Now, let's look

         22  at it.

         23                 The people are going to bid at each

         24  plant, the contractors.  It's going to be built by

         25  private contractors with a contract with the City.
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          2  Is that correct?

          3                 MR. McARDLE:  It is in all

          4  likelihood, whether it is built in Westchester or in

          5  New York City, a member of my association or a group

          6  of those members will be the low bidders.  Our

          7  members work in both Westchester and in New York

          8  City and in New Jersey.  They are the largest heavy

          9  contractors in this marketplace.  They will bid on

         10  it. This is not an issue about my contractors versus

         11  Westchester contractors.  It's really about the

         12  labor.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So, it could

         14  be, let's say, a Westchester- based contractor that

         15  would get the job, whether it's in Westchester or

         16  New York City?

         17                 MR. McARDLE:  In reality right now,

         18  most of the contractor members, and I have 120

         19  members, are not located in the City.  I have a

         20  substantial number of members who are headquartered

         21  in Westchester but who do their work, at least most

         22  of their work, in New York City.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay.  Let's

         24  take the Westchester contractor for the sake of my

         25  understanding.
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          2                 MR. McARDLE:  Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  They get the

          4  job. They bid on the job or a big part of the job

          5  and they get that big part of the job.  Where do

          6  they -- where are they going to hire their workers?

          7                 MR. McARDLE:  They will approach the

          8            locals in Westchester, 137 in the case of

          9  the operating      engineers --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Now, the

         11  project's going to be in the Bronx.  I'm sorry, I

         12  didn't make it clear.  The project's going to be in

         13  Van Cortlandt Park, but a Westchester located

         14  contractor gets the low bid.  Now, how does he get

         15  his workers or her workers?  Where does the business

         16  get its workers?

         17                 MR. McARDLE:  It could be DeFoe

         18  located down in Mount Vernon, it could be Yonkers

         19  Contracting located in Yonkers, it could be Perrini

         20  (phonetic) located up in Peekskill now, moved from

         21  Hawthorne.  Those companies, when they come into New

         22  York City to get their labor, get their labor from

         23  the New York City locals.  They would draw their

         24  operating engineers, not from 137 that covers

         25  Westchester, they would draw their operating
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          2  engineers from Local 14 and 50.  If they are drawing

          3  their construction labor, they would not draw it

          4  from the local in Westchester headed by Carlos

          5  Ascencio, they will come to New York City and draw

          6  their labor from Local 731 of the excavating

          7  laborers or they will draw their labor from Local

          8  29, the drillers and blasters in New York City or

          9  the tunnel workers in New York City, Local 147

         10  located on Catona Avenue in Woodlawn.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay.

         12                 MR. McARDLE:  That's where they draw

         13  their labor.  If they are drawing their carpenters,

         14  they will draw them from Local 608, also

         15  headquartered on Catona Avenue in Woodlawn.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay.  Now,

         17  those locals, --

         18                 MR. McARDLE:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  -- Are their

         20  members all New York City residents?

         21                 MR. McARDLE:  No, I would estimate --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Wait a

         23  minute, please.  I'm asking Mr. McArdle.  Anybody

         24  else wants to give me a different answer, they can

         25  later.  I really want Mr. McArdle to answer me.
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          2                 MR. McARDLE:  The estimate that we

          3  have, based on what they have told us, is that more

          4  than 80% of their workforce is New York City based

          5  in the case of the laborers who are the bulk of the

          6  trade used here.  And now, probably, and again based

          7  on Mr. Coletti's analysis, very close to 90% of the

          8  apprentices that are drawn into the workforce now

          9  start in New York City, although I will tell you,

         10  with the wages that these jobs pay, keeping people

         11  in New York City, you know, is not as easy as it

         12  once was.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So, the

         14  members of these locals, the various locals do not

         15  have to be New York City residents?

         16                 MR. McARDLE:  No, they do not.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  And do we

         18  have rosters for these locals as to where their

         19  members live?

         20                 MR. McARDLE:  We have had some

         21  information provided by them and I'm sure that later

         22  in the testimony Paul Luddine, who heads the Bronx

         23  Board of Business Agents, which represents the Bronx

         24  business agents for each of the unions, can speak to

         25  this issue more directly.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay.  I

          3  will say now for whoever in the audience wants to

          4  provide it to me, I would like to see hard

          5  information, not we have a lot of members from New

          6  York City, hard information, lists of rosters to

          7  show where in each of these cases the members of

          8  these locals who will be providing the jobs to the

          9  contractors which we have learned are not New York

         10  City based, but that may not be so important.

         11  Obviously, there's some --

         12                 MR. McARDLE:  They don't have to be

         13  New York City based.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I understand

         15  that. They could be, they don't have to be.  I want

         16  to know where their members, where the registered

         17  members of these locals live before we talk about

         18  New York City jobs.  Thank you, Mr. McArdle.

         19                 MR. McARDLE:  Can I add something to

         20  that, Councilman, which I think is important to

         21  understand?  It's not just a question of who they

         22  have on their rosters now, okay, it is a question of

         23  who they will be adding to their rosters and where

         24  they will recruit from.  What we have said about

         25  this project all along is that it creates an
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          2  opportunity to build bridges between the CGE schools

          3  in the Bronx with the vocational programs in the

          4  Bronx and the trades and the employers, not just for

          5  this project, but for future projects.  One

          6  understands, I think, in reading the purchase of the

          7  Buntsman (phonetic) interest in the Bronx Terminal

          8  Market, the development of the new Yankee Stadium

          9  and other things, promise much more work for the

         10  future in the Bronx.  It's very clear that the first

         11  step which were taken on the Bronx Courthouse

         12  project can be extended on this project.  And those

         13  are the commitments that have been made by the Bronx

         14  Board of Business Agents and by the employers.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.  In

         16  the interest of moving this along, since we have a

         17  very full and packed audience here today, we're

         18  going to ask that the questions be finalized, and

         19  thank you very much, Mrs. Wylde and gentlemen, thank

         20  you.

         21                 Next we will have Karen McRae from

         22  the Phipps Friends of Catona Park.  Then we will

         23  have Mark Caserta, New Yorkers for Parks and Pete

         24  Creegan from Local 580 Ironworkers, and Dennis

         25  Milton from the Ironworkers as well. We're going to
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          2  do it in groups of four with the time clock so that

          3  we can try to get through today's hearing before

          4  9:00, at least.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  You can begin.

          6    One second.  Is Karen McRae here?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Dennis Milton.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  James Mahoney?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Not here.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  580.  Dennis

         11  Milton.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Okay.  All

         13  right. Lynn Pyle?  You can proceed.

         14                 MR. MILTON:  Good afternoon.  My name

         15  is Dennis Milton.  I'm a resident of Bronx 10463.

         16  I'm also the business agent for the Ironworkers and

         17  a representative of New York State Ironworkers.

         18  I've spoke on this issue many times over eight years

         19  up in Westchester, and the people in Westchester

         20  gave you the Bronx cheer.  They really don't like

         21  people from the Bronx building anything up there.

         22                 I spoke on this issue and once -- at

         23  the Bronx County Courthouse there's a mural on the

         24  wall and there's a couple of young boys carrying

         25  water buckets.  All right.  This here's a big issue
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          2  because your forefathers had the foresight to build

          3  these water tunnels to bring that water to a spigot

          4  right to you, all right?  And it made it easy for

          5  everybody.  They had the vision not to have your

          6  children carrying water buckets up for your fathers

          7  and your mothers and grandfathers.  Not for the

          8  rich, but this water is for all the people, whether

          9  you're Black, Hispanic, Asian, any nationality.

         10                 We had parasites in the water.  We're

         11  trying to correct it.  I travel around in the United

         12  States, Canada and met thousands of people abroad.

         13  Some of them come up to you and say, "You're from

         14  New York, and I've got to compliment you, in New

         15  York they have the best drinking water that we ever

         16  had."  And that's the way we like to keep it.  And

         17  it made me feel good inside that knowing I was a New

         18  Yorker and I was born right there in the Bronx,

         19  where the filtration plant should be built.  But if

         20   -- you have to take your hats off to our

         21  forefathers, they had the foresight.

         22                 It's time to protect your children,

         23  the future generation to come long after we're gone.

         24    And we come back to one word "foresight".  It

         25  seems that they're lacking here in the Bronx.  These
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          2  water filtration tunnels were a construction feat

          3  that amazed engineering and students.  The people

          4  who built these tunnels blasted through rock with

          5  shovels, ax and picks, by hands.  They had cut

          6  foots, broken bones and deaths, cave ins.  These

          7  men, they gave it their all to bring us something we

          8  take for granted.  Hard work is going to build this

          9  needed filtration plant, not politics.  So I beg all

         10  of you to upgrade the drinking water that your

         11  forefathers put right at your spigot.  Thank you

         12  very much.  Appreciate it.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         14                 MR. CREEGAN:  Good afternoon,

         15  everyone.  My name is Pete Creegan.  I'm also a

         16  resident -- I was a resident of the Bronx.  I used

         17  to live in Riverdale.  I'm now currently up in

         18  Mahopac County.  I'd like to thank all the people

         19  that spoke previously.

         20                 I don't know how many public hearings

         21  I have been on this issue, but it's quite a few, and

         22  I've heard all parts of both sides of both issues.

         23  We've come down to the eleventh hour again.  We now

         24  have Mr. Koppell and Mr. Dinowitz as the main

         25  speakers against this project.  At first they were
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          2  against building the project at all. They've come

          3  around to the point where they accept the fact that

          4  it has to be built, but they don't want it built in

          5  their constituents' areas.  And I appreciate that,

          6  and they have to do their job, but the whole thing

          7  of democracy is some might have to suffer a little

          8  bit, not so much in this point suffer, but go

          9  through a little bit of inconvenience for the

         10  betterment of all.  And the tough decisions come

         11  down to you, the Council people here, that have to

         12  vote on this MOU.  So I commend you on your hard job

         13  in front of you and the hard decisions that you have

         14  to make, but you have to look at the betterment of

         15  all.  I think we've all come to that conclusion, we

         16  need to get this thing done.  It's a matter of being

         17  built in Westchester or being built in the Bronx.

         18                 Like some Council people have spoken

         19  before, why in your right mind would you want to

         20  export jobs like our President Bush is doing?  You

         21  want to outsource our jobs from the Bronx up to

         22  Westchester on a local level. President Bush is

         23  doing it on a national level.  Let's bring it home.

         24  Let's keep the jobs in the Bronx for the people that

         25  live in the Bronx, and everybody will benefit from
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          2  it. Thank you very much.

          3                 DEPUTY DIRECTOR CASERTA:  Good

          4  afternoon.  My name is Mark Caserta.  I'm the Deputy

          5  Director of New Yorkers for Parks, a citywide

          6  advocacy organization working to protect and promote

          7  New York City's 28,700 acres of parkland.

          8                 First, we want to take the

          9  opportunity to thank the Council for including many

         10  needy neighborhood parks in the eligible parks that

         11  are slated for improvement in connection with Van

         12  Cortlandt Park.  According to our analysis, 12 of

         13  the parks on the list were inspected as part of our

         14  report card.  These 12, 10 received a C, D or F

         15  grades for the last two years.  We also note the MOU

         16  seems to accommodate nine of the 12 community

         17  boards, and that the sites appear in the community

         18  board's capital needs list.

         19                 However, the process in picking the

         20  parks was not made public until today.  We believe

         21  that the very people who are most affected by the

         22  construction, Bronx Park users, also known as the

         23  taxpayers, ought to have been included in

         24  discussions about park selection long ago.  They

         25  were not.

                                                            121

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 Further, New Yorkers for Parks is

          3  disappointed that $200 million is being spent on

          4  parks capital projects, but yet there's no mention

          5  of the maintenance money or at least the maintenance

          6  plan for the future of these parks.  I'm assuming we

          7  can count on the City Council to increase the Parks

          8  Department's maintenance budget as a result of this.

          9                 Also, we'd like assurances that the

         10  money for eligible park capital projects is

         11  additional money, not replacement dollars that would

         12  have been allocated in next year's budget.  And,

         13  after all, Bronx Park users are being asked to make

         14  additional sacrifices because of the location of the

         15  plant in the park.  Where is the guarantee that this

         16  is additional money for them?

         17                 New Yorkers for Parks is a citywide

         18  organization, so we're not here to tell Bronx parks

         19   -- people in the Bronx which of its parks to

         20  refurbish.  We'd only like the people of the Bronx

         21  to have a voice in deciding what they want improved.

         22

         23                 That said, there's some glaring

         24  issues with at least two eligible parks.  First, why

         25  is the State Park, Roberto Clemente, slated to
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          2  receive $10 million.  In essence, City residents

          3  will be asked to fund an enormous state park capital

          4  improvement to a park, and this seems inherently

          5  unfair.

          6                 Second, Macombs Dam Park is projected

          7  to receive $6 million.  This is a park soon to be

          8  razed as reported in a New York Times article on

          9  July 30th, 2004.  If this park will be shortly

         10  eradicated for a new Yankee Stadium, why is the City

         11  spending this money?

         12                 Finally, we want to reiterate that as

         13  the only citywide parks advocacy organization, we

         14  always oppose the taking of parklands, a rare

         15  commodity in our city, for all non- park uses and,

         16  in this case, continue to oppose locating such a

         17  filtration plant in the park.

         18                 Today, in connection with the

         19  discussion of this MOU, we join the Friends of Van

         20  Cortlandt Park in calling upon the Council to tour

         21  the site before ratifying anything and to involve

         22  the Bronx community in going forward with park

         23  plans.  Thank you.

         24                 MS. McRAE:  I'll address this to the

         25  guardians of our park and neighborhood, and I'm
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          2  sorry so few have stayed.  I want to thank you for

          3  the EIS and for making the final choice of the site

          4  your choice.

          5                 My qualification for what I'm going

          6  to say is that my father was an accountant and a

          7  professor of business administration, and he taught

          8  me how to read and do story problems.  And really,

          9  all you need to do is read and do story problems to

         10  know that there's something very wrong in the cost

         11  estimates for this project that have been given to

         12  the Council and the public.  We ask that you seek

         13  non partisan, objective review of the information

         14  the DEP has given you before you vote.

         15                 I want to review some of that history

         16  and my colleague will take it on.  I'm going to go

         17  up to the draft environmental impact statement.  He

         18  goes on from there.

         19                 A year ago, spring 2003, the DEP told

         20  you it was $600 million cheaper to build in Van

         21  Cortlandt Park. Being reasonable New Yorkers, you

         22  voted the message that made alienation of Van

         23  Cortlandt Park in our neighborhood an option.  You

         24  thought it was the cheaper option by $600 million.

         25  Then in December 2003, six months after your vote,
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          2  the draft environmental impact statement came out.

          3  And we were all amazed to find the DEP's own study

          4  said it was $309 million cheaper to build at

          5  Eastview in Westchester.

          6                 Let's do the math.  The draft EIS

          7  says clearly Eastview would be -- this is the wrong

          8  side, sorry   -- Eastview would be $19 million

          9  cheaper.  But if you read carefully, there is a

         10  footnote that says $290 million of the total at

         11  Eastview is a contribution to the Kensico City water

         12  tunnel.  Now, the Kensico City tunnel has to be

         13  built whether the filtration plant is sited at

         14  Eastview or at Van Cortlandt.  And the Commissioner

         15  says it's the linchpin to the long- term water

         16  supply.  But it's only included in the Eastview

         17  total.  Not fair, you say.  Agreed.  Not fair

         18  because the $290 million contribution for the

         19  Kensico water tunnel is what makes Eastview almost,

         20  but not quite, as expensive as Van Cortlandt Park.

         21                 Now, common sense tells you building

         22  an above- ground structure at Eastview will be

         23  cheaper than taking two years to prepare the site,

         24  blast a huge nine- acre hole in bedrock, engineer

         25  the structure underground, build the access roads
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          2  and try to mitigate the neighborhood, et cetera.

          3  The draft EIS says straight up, it's $19 million

          4  cheaper.  And if you subtract the unfairly added

          5  contribution to the Kensico City tunnel, it's $309

          6  million cheaper at Eastview.

          7                 What happened from the time of your

          8  vote to the draft EIS?   You have two weeks and the

          9  resources.  Ask the Comptroller or the Independent

         10  Budget Office.  Please get an objective, non-

         11  partisan review of the cost estimate information the

         12  DEP is giving you.  Come to see the sites for

         13  yourself.  We think you'll vote no to the Van

         14  Cortlandt MOU.

         15                 And what I'm understanding more and

         16  more each day is that what goes around comes around.

         17    As long as money is the only value we honor, the

         18  only cost we count, we will get the pain and chaos

         19  and destruction we deserve.  What goes around comes

         20  around.  We ask you for deeper value and respect for

         21  other human beings.  We ask --

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         23                 MS. McRAE:  We ask that, yes, the

         24  money costs be weighed --

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Thank you.
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          2  I'm sorry.

          3                 MS. McRAE:  But think of the people

          4  who will be gasping for air.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

          6                 Gil A. Maduro, Jr., James Morgan.

          7  Thank you. Marion Rose.  Paul Luddine.  Please

          8  excuse us if we're mispronouncing these names.  You

          9  can proceed.  Thank you.

         10                 PRESIDENT ROSE:  Good afternoon.  My

         11  name is Marion Rose.  I'm President of the Croton

         12  Watershed Clean Water Coalition, whose members

         13  include residents of the Bronx.  I'm appearing today

         14  to express CWC's or Croton Watershed Clean Water

         15  Coalition's grave concern regarding the process the

         16  City is following in addressing the issue of the

         17  allocation of the $200 million that is the subject

         18  of the MOU.

         19                 Now, in the recently signed MOU by

         20  Mayor Bloomberg, the only source of funding is from

         21  the sale of bonds by the New York City Municipal

         22  Water Finance Authority.  The MOU proposes to use

         23  those funds only for "eligible projects".  The MOU

         24   -- defined as a capital project which qualifies as

         25  a water project under Section 1045B20 of the New
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          2  York Public Authority's law.  That section clearly

          3  states that "Water projects shall mean any sewerage

          4  facility, water facility or water and sewerage

          5  facility, as the case may be, including the

          6  planning, development, financing or construction

          7  thereof."  None of the projects listed in Exhibit A

          8  of the MOU are water projects under this definition.

          9    The list includes soccer fields, bridal paths,

         10  playgrounds, picnic areas, tennis courts in various

         11  spots in the Bronx.  And CWC does not understand how

         12  these projects could possibly qualify for funding by

         13  the MWFA.

         14                 Furthermore, except for work on the

         15  southeast corner of Van Cortlandt Park, none of

         16  these projects compensate or mitigate the loss of

         17  park space or facilities made unusable.

         18                 Therefore, we question the validity

         19  of the process reflected in this MOU, and we urge

         20  the Committee on State and Federal Legislation to

         21  take a hard look at the compliance and policy issues

         22  raised by the process before deciding on any

         23  recommendation to the full City Council. We've heard

         24  that the City may seek to say that the projects are

         25  water projects because the 200 million is the cost
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          2  of doing business.  If that were the case, then the

          3  DEP or any other agency could simply up the ante

          4  until local opposition died down and bond funds for

          5  the needed cost of business payments to proceed.

          6  Every acre of land throughout New York City and New

          7  York State would be at risk.  We have long argued

          8  that the industrial facility being proposed by DEP

          9  for the Croton water is far more expensive, far

         10  larger and possibly less effective than more recent

         11  commercially proven water treatment.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  I'm sorry,

         13  time.  We have too many individuals testifying.  We

         14  have to be very strict on the three minutes.

         15                 MS. ROSE:  Can I just say the last

         16  sentence? We urge you not to ratify this MOU and to

         17  recommend to the City Council not to do so.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         19  Gil Maduro?

         20                 PROFESSOR MADURO:  Good afternoon.

         21  Gil Maduro.  I'm a professor of economics at Baruch

         22  College. I'm a resident of Mosholu Parkway adjacent

         23  to one of the proposed sites.  I have to begin my

         24  comments with an observation.  Any independent

         25  reader of the final Environmental Impact Statement

                                                            129

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  has to come up with the other conclusion that this

          3  is an act of deception.  In fact, this could very

          4  well have been written by the Marx brothers lawyers

          5  of Flywheel, Shyster & Flywheel because it's just a

          6  big collection of half truths, ambiguous and vague

          7  statements and a whole slew of assertions without

          8  substantiation.

          9                 I took the liberty of preparing this

         10  chart comparing the sites, the two main sites, and

         11  the draft and the final study, and it looks like

         12  this.  If you have it, you might want to follow it.

         13  I would like to draw your attention to the $31

         14  million figure, which is a discrepancy that the

         15  final study shows, in comparison to the draft,

         16  whereas- and this is for Eastview- whereas for the

         17  Mosholu site, there is no change.  Now, this is a

         18  miracle, that the Mosholu site shows no change in

         19  cost but miraculously the Eastview site, the cost

         20  increased by $31 million.  Now, how did that happen?

         21    This to me is a clear sign, and I teach statistics

         22  and this looks like an attempt to muddle facts. How

         23  can you justify this $31 million and claim that

         24  there's no change in the -- for the Mosholu site.

         25  In fact, this $31 million is just enough to increase
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          2  the water rates if the plant is built at Eastview.

          3  So that is highly suspect.

          4                 Now, I think that the most troubling

          5  aspect of the final study is the inclusion of the

          6  Kensico City tunnel in the cost figures for the

          7  filtration plant at Eastview.  That is so dishonest.

          8  And if you factor that out, which by the way this is

          9  not included in the Mosholu, and this is a tunnel

         10  that is planned and in all likelihood will be built,

         11  if you factor that out, the Eastview plant will cost

         12  $278 million less than Mosholu.  So that will take

         13  care of the 200 million -- you got the gist.

         14                 Well, those $278 million will be just

         15  enough to cover the $243 million for parks

         16  improvements.  So, again, the numbers are highly

         17  suspect.  I think that you should exercise or should

         18  bring to bear the checks and balances and bring to

         19  task the executive.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  There are two

         21  people who have not testified, I believe.

         22                 MR. LUDDINE:  Thank you.  My name's

         23  Paul Luddine.  I'm Bronx business agent for the

         24  Teamsters and I'm also President of the Bronx Board

         25  of Business Agents and, quite frankly, we need the
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          2  jobs.

          3                 This project has been mandated to be

          4  built and we want it built in the Bronx so that the

          5  New York City building trades will work on the

          6  project.  We have many members in the building

          7  trades that are actually in danger of losing their

          8  homes.  We have many members that live in the Bronx

          9  that are in danger of losing where they live. This

         10  is not a joke.  We need the work, there's no

         11  question about it.  We do not ignore the concerns of

         12  the community. In fact, I believe very strongly in

         13  the community and the youth of the Bronx.

         14                 In order to bring the youth of the

         15  Bronx into the building trades and give them real

         16  paying jobs with real pensions, with real annuities,

         17  preapproved apprenticeship programs and train them

         18  and give them lifetime jobs, we need to have this

         19  work, to put our members to work so that we can open

         20  our doors to the youth of the Bronx.  The concerns

         21  of the community are very real and I take them to

         22  heart.

         23                 As far as the asthma and the dust, my

         24  daughter suffers from asthma, so I know what it is

         25  to face that.  We will have water trucks on the job
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          2  watering down the site.  If anyone has ever played

          3  in the mud, you will know that you don't get any

          4  dust when you play in the mud. We will water down

          5  that site.  We will have hoses watering down that

          6  site and we will have water trucks on the site.

          7                 I recommend a trip wire for the

          8  trucks when they come out of the site to turn on a

          9  pressurized system which will wash the trucks down

         10  so that they can go out of the site and will not

         11  create any other dust on the roads.

         12                 As far as the route to the site, the

         13  route should be mandated.  The trucks should come

         14  off the Major Deegan into the site and out.  There

         15  is not one residential home on that route to or from

         16  the site, and that should be the route the trucks

         17  follow.  They should not be into the neighborhoods.

         18                 Jobs for the residents of the Bronx.

         19  I believe that the site should have a project labor

         20  agreement, I'm in favor of it, which should be

         21  mandated at least 25% of the residents in the Bronx

         22  work on the site.  If that is not in place, we will

         23  do our very best to bring every Bronx resident that

         24  we possibly can into the site, because I believe in

         25  the people of the Bronx, and I believe they should
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          2  work on this project and they should enjoy the

          3  prosperity that the project brings to us

          4                 And you can't ignore the money for

          5  the parks. The children need the money for the

          6  parks.  We have different programs within the trades

          7  that help the children of the Bronx.  We've gone to

          8  career days at their schools, and they get very

          9  excited when we tell them what they can do by

         10  becoming a member of the New York City Building

         11  Trades.             We need this work.  I urge you

         12  strongly to vote in favor of the Memorandum of Usage

         13  for this site in Van Cortlandt.  Thank you.

         14                 MR. MORGAN:  Good afternoon.  I am

         15  Jim Morgan, registered architect and adjunct

         16  professor at New York University, and I think in

         17  this context I'll mention that I am a member of two

         18  unions as well.

         19                 But the most important thing is that

         20  as a resident of Alphabet City, I am a consumer of

         21  the City's so called low- level service, that is to

         22  say Croton water which I happily drink every day

         23  from my tap.  That's my interest in the filtration

         24  plant issue.

         25                 I focused in my comments on the DEIS
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          2  on Sections 6.13, called hazardous materials, and

          3  6.15 called water resources.  In order to illustrate

          4  that in hydrological terms, building this plant in

          5  Van Cortlandt Park, as has been proposed, is

          6  ridiculous.  My point is that having offered to push

          7  it deep underground in order to convince the New

          8  York State Legislature that it will be "invisible",

          9  the City has created technical problems that can

         10  only be justified if there's no other alternative

         11  but to build it there.  And as the EIS makes

         12  extremely clear, there is another viable site,

         13  namely at Eastview.

         14                 The issue is ground water management,

         15  a far more risky business than the writer of those

         16  two sections seems willing to acknowledge.  We are

         17  discussing a huge hole to be dug and mostly blasted

         18  out of the living rock, essentially two football

         19  fields long on each side and nine building stories

         20  at its deepest point.  1,125,000 cubic yards.

         21                 Once the plant structure has been

         22  placed in this pit, the DEIS writer acknowledges

         23  that ground water will constantly flow around and

         24  under it as long as the hole exists.  If you can

         25  imagine trying to submerge a cake pan in a bucket of
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          2  water, you know that when you stop pushing it down,

          3  it pops up and floats on the surface.  In spite of

          4  the dimensions and weight of the vast structure they

          5  will be submerging in that hole, the principle of

          6  hydrostatic pressure dictates that unless ground

          7  water accumulation is somehow dealt with, the plant

          8  will also bob up to the surface just as surely as

          9  the cake pan.

         10                 On reflection, since the public

         11  hearing, however, one realizes that there is a more

         12  serious objection:  The projection of 100 gallons

         13  per minute of ground water flow into the excavation

         14  may be dangerously optimistic.  You will be told no

         15  doubt that technology exists to handle whatever

         16  magnitude of flow is ultimately discovered, and

         17  assurances will certainly be made that waterproofing

         18  techniques are available to resist this

         19  exceptionally intense hydrostatic pressure so that a

         20  tight and dry shell will be delivered to the City

         21  once construction is complete.  In fact, what the

         22  City is buying, if it persists in building this in

         23  Van Cortlandt Park, is the mother of all leaky

         24  basements.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very
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          2  much, sir.

          3                 Are there any questions from the

          4  Committee members for the lady and the gentlemen

          5  here?  Council Member Koppell?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  A question

          7  just for the Business Agent.  Do you have a roster

          8  with residents' addresses of the workers --

          9                 MR. LUDDINE:  We can go by that if

         10  it's mandated, and if we need to provide it, we

         11  will.  I do not have it on me.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I can't

         13  mandate it, but I would be interested in seeing it.

         14                 MR. LUDDINE:  If that's what needs to

         15  be, we'll bring it.  I'm not going to say I have it

         16  on me, I don't.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I'm not

         18  saying it needs to be, but I'm saying I would like

         19  to see it.

         20                 MR. LUDDINE:  No.  The answer is I

         21  don't have it --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I know you

         23  don't have it with you.  Do you live in the Bronx,

         24  sir?

         25                 MR. LUDDINE:  No, I don't, and I am
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          2  typical of construction workers who would work on

          3  this project. I've been working in the Bronx for 17

          4  years.  I've come to know many store owners in the

          5  Bronx, many restaurant owners of the Bronx and many

          6  people of the Bronx.  I've gone to many, many

          7  community board meetings.  I love the people of the

          8  Bronx and I like the youth of the Bronx.  I've

          9  worked with Alfred E. Smith High School and the

         10  students of Alfred E. Smith High School, and I've

         11  come to know them, and I believe they should have

         12  the chance to enjoy a job like I have and possibly

         13  reach any goal that they want in life, because the

         14  New York City Building Trades is an avenue which you

         15  can go anywhere in this country.  You can become

         16  anything you want through the New York City Building

         17  Trades. And we've had the students at Alfred E.

         18  Smith School at our meetings, and we've explained to

         19  them and they want to come into the building trades.

         20    You know, computers and some of the high tech jobs

         21  are not the only jobs that are going to be in the

         22  future.  Building trade jobs are very much in the

         23  future.  And when we let these students know what

         24  they can earn and the possibilities that they have,

         25  they get very excited about possibly coming into the
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          2  building trades.

          3                 So my answer to you is no, I don't

          4  live in the Bronx but I've worked in the Bronx and

          5  spent up to 15 hours a day in the Bronx, not only as

          6  a truck driver but now as a business agent and have

          7  come to know the community and, as far as I'm

          8  concerned, I'm a Bronx resident.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I'm not

         10  being critical of you, sir, but I'm just

         11  illustrating the fact that the jobs here is no

         12  guarantee that Bronx residents are going to get

         13  these jobs.

         14                 MR. LUDDINE:  We can guarantee that

         15  with a project labor agreement.  It's a legal

         16  documentation which could guarantee it.  It's been

         17  used at the Bronx Courthouse. There is a mandated

         18  25% quota on that courthouse, and if that was put

         19  into place here on this project, then you would have

         20  a guarantee of Bronx residents on that job site.

         21  Without the project labor agreement, we believe in

         22  the people in the Bronx, and the unions will do

         23  everything we can to ensure the most people from the

         24  Bronx work on the site.

         25                 And again, as I said in my opening
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          2  comments, when we use up the people from the

          3  building trades, it opens up the doors to bring new

          4  people in.  We've invited groups that represent

          5  young people who are looking for jobs in the Bronx

          6  to come into our board, and we've provided them with

          7  information on how to get into the building trades,

          8  and we will continue to do this.  And this project

          9  would be an explosion for us and would open those

         10  doors to the young people in the Bronx.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Seeing no other

         12  questions, thank you very much, ladies and

         13  gentlemen.  Next we will hear from Dennis Ippolito

         14  from Insulations and Asbestos Local 12.  Then Lowell

         15  Green from College Garden Co- Op.  From Leonard T.

         16  Impastato- hopefully I said it correctly- from 5

         17  Star Electric STA and Dart Westphal as well.  Again,

         18  I'll repeat these names.  Dart Westphal, Leonard

         19  Impastato, Lowell Green and Dennis or Denise

         20  Ippolito.

         21                 MR. IPPOLITO:  Dennis Ippolito for

         22  Insulators and Asbestos Workers Local 12 out of New

         23  York City.  Thank you very much for your time and I

         24  appreciate it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Do we have the
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          2  rest, the two other individuals, also?  We are

          3  missing Lowell Green.  So we're missing Leonard

          4  Impastato and Dart Westphal.  If not them, we'll put

          5  them aside.  We'll have Arthur Gladwin Wishropp and

          6  Luis Coronel.  Is there a Luis Coronel and Arthur

          7  Gladwin Wishropp here?  No?  Then we will bring up

          8  Carolyn Zolas.  Carolyn Zolas, please come forward.

          9  And Miss Ursula P. Morgan.  Ursula P. Morgan, please

         10  come forward.  Now, you decide amongst yourselves

         11  who goes first and then proceed with your testimony.

         12                 MR. IPPOLITO:  I'll go first.  All

         13  right?  As I said, Dennis Ippolito.  I'm the

         14  business manager for Local 12, New York City

         15  Insulators & Asbestos Workers.  We're a member of

         16  the building trades in New York City.

         17                 I think this is a no brainer as far

         18  as I've been coming to a lot of these meetings.

         19  This filtration plant is definitely needed.  It

         20  should be built in the Bronx.  Yes, it's a win- win

         21  for my membership, for the building trades, but it's

         22  also a win- win for the Bronx and the New York City

         23  economy.  This plant would generate a lot of jobs

         24  inside of New York City and, yes, a little bit

         25  outside of New York City, but it will generate a lot
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          2  of construction jobs in New York City for the people

          3  of New York City and for the people of Bronx.

          4                 This city has been struggling over

          5  the last four or five years and it's going to

          6  continue to struggle unless there's economic

          7  development in this city.  If the politicians can't

          8  iron out their problems and the communities can't

          9  understand that this City needs to have an economic

         10  development plan that's good for the City and good

         11  for its people, this City is going to become

         12  stagnated and it won't be able to develop itself as

         13  it has over the last hundred, hundred and fifty

         14  years.  It's very important, this project and many

         15  other projects.

         16                 It's $250 million that's going to go

         17  to the Parks Department in the Bronx for the kids of

         18  the Bronx. The kids and the family members, when

         19  they go out on a Sunday afternoon, they've got

         20  someplace to go.  And that's a great thing.  That

         21  $250 million can be well spent.

         22                 The water that's going to be cleaned

         23  up, this is not for just this generation or the

         24  generation, your sons and my sons, this is for

         25  generations over the next hundred years, which is an
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          2  important thing.  You're going to have clean water

          3  for future generations, and you're not going to have

          4  it, the clean water being shipped down from

          5  Westchester where it's got to come 20 or 30 miles.

          6  It's going to be right there at the source, and when

          7  you have something at the source, it's always going

          8  to be that much cleaner.

          9                 And the other point I would like to

         10  make is the taxes, the taxes that we're going to

         11  have to -- that New York City is going to have to

         12  pay an already rich Westchester County.  It just

         13  doesn't make any sense to me. We should keep as much

         14  tax money in this city as we possibly can.  We need

         15  it for this generation and all future generations.

         16  You could see what happened after 9/11.  They

         17  promised us the world, President Bush and his fellow

         18   -- I'm not going to say the names that I was going

         19  to use -- but they promised us the world, and we're

         20  still waiting for that money.  We need as much

         21  economic development and tax base in this city as we

         22  possibly can.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 PRESIDENT GREEN:  My name is Lowell
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          2  Green, and I'm President of College Gardens Co- Op.

          3  We're a middle income, non- Section 8, two building,

          4  60- unit each co- op in Norwood, ten minutes walking

          5  distance from the proposed site.

          6                 I would like to mention, we don't own

          7  any money.  We own our land, and we don't have any

          8  mortgages on our building.  However, we have lowered

          9  all the factors we can in maintaining a liveable,

         10  middle income co- op.  The water rates went up 5.5%

         11  in June.  Taxes are going up. Insurance is going up.

         12    How do you expect middle income people to live in

         13  New York City?  Whether we give these jobs to Bronx

         14  people or not is not important -- is important, but

         15  if they can't live in the City, what's the purpose.

         16  We have lowered everything we can in our control.

         17  Seriously, think long and hard how much can you

         18  raise the water rates for the City of New York.  And

         19  look at the price tag.  And that price tag I wonder,

         20  is it legal to use water rate money to pay for

         21  parks.  Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         23  much.  Next?

         24                 MS. ZOLAS:  My name is Carolyn Zolas,

         25  and I'm the Chair of the New York State Watershed
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          2  Committee for the Sierra Club.

          3                 A lot of talk today has been about

          4  the cost of this plant and which plant costs less;

          5  however, according to a very recent IBO, Independent

          6  Budget Office, report, this plant has already

          7  climbed to $1.6 billion in cost.  So I would like to

          8  know, what are the meaning of the numbers that the

          9  DEP put up on the board showing different numbers

         10  for different locations and different scenarios,

         11  because none of those added up to 1.6 billion.  This

         12  is an expensive plant.  Unfortunately, the elephant

         13  in the room is that this plant is not the only

         14  choice.

         15                 Everybody's talking about the

         16  inevitability of filtration, but what nobody knows

         17  is that the DEP said years ago that membrane

         18  filtration was the best kind of filtration.  It

         19  doesn't use chemicals, it takes up one- sixth of the

         20  space of the kind of filtration plant that they're

         21  proposing.  Years ago, it was very expensive, but

         22  over the past five years it's come way down in

         23  price.  It would cost a fraction of this plant

         24  that's being proposed.  Why hasn't the DEP looked at

         25  that currently?  Under law, they should be looking
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          2  at all the alternatives, and they have not

          3  investigated the current cost.  And I can recommend

          4  to them a very large engineering firm that builds

          5  these kind of filtration plants, it's called Black &

          6  Veatch.  I know the City has used this engineering

          7  firm at some point in time. It's an internationally-

          8  known engineering firm.

          9                 Second of all, I'd like to talk about

         10  the question of Councilwoman Sears earlier when she

         11  said what's going to happen to the water during all

         12  these years of construction.  The answer that

         13  Commissioner Ward gave was that we just wouldn't use

         14  the water.  But I would like to point out that the

         15  water is still clean.  The reason they're not using

         16  it is because of the new Croton aqueduct and the

         17  horrible shape that it's been allowed to degrade

         18  into.

         19                 Over the past seven years, the DEP

         20  has spent only $17 million to buy land to protect

         21  this watershed, but less than 400 acres of land to

         22  protect the Croton.  Instead of protecting valuable

         23  ecosystems, the source of our life giving water, the

         24  City promises that because of the billions they're

         25  spending on a plant twice the size of Yankee
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          2  Stadium, they can deliver clean water.  This is not

          3  true.               The massive plant presents an

          4  image of filtration that permits rich developers to

          5  build on and destroy a natural watershed that is

          6  protecting our water for over 150 years.

          7                 I'd like to say something about 200

          8  million   -- oh, too late.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.

         10                 MS. ZOLAS:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Next man.

         12                 MS. MORGAN:  Hi, my name is Ursula P.

         13  Morgan. I am here on behalf of my community, and I

         14  am also a member of the Bronx Environmental Health &

         15  Justice.  But above all, I am one of many mothers

         16  who have children with asthma.  My daughter, in

         17  particular, has pulmonary dysphasia.  She's has a

         18  very delicate condition.  To try to understand how

         19  she lives, take a straw and try breathing through it

         20  every single day.  Okay.  That's the extent of her

         21  living.

         22                 I live just a few blocks away from

         23  the proposed chemical plant, which is why I became

         24  involved with the Bronx Environmental Health &

         25  Justice.  I understand the need for clean water, and
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          2  I understand there is the Court Order, and I

          3  understand that we need jobs.  If they can guarantee

          4  jobs for the Bronx people here, they can also

          5  guarantee it over there.  Okay?

          6                 I just want to let them know that my

          7  daughter, when she is having problems breathing,

          8  okay, it's a result of the air.  She's never once

          9  got sick from water, not once.  But she has been in

         10  the hospital many times because of dust particles or

         11  anything that is in the air that clogs up her lungs.

         12                 I have worked in construction for

         13  many years, and I was a laborer in the excavation.

         14  And I'm not an expert, but I can testify to the

         15  hazardous conditions that are promoted, not to

         16  mention what can easily possibly happen to an entire

         17  city water supply if an accidental explosion or a

         18  chemical spill.  You know, it has the greatest

         19  potential to impact not only the Bronx, but all the

         20  Bronx -- but all of the boroughs.

         21                 This site is an environmental

         22  disaster awaiting to happen.  The Bronx has one of

         23  the highest rate of asthma in this nation.  It is so

         24  and everyone knows it. And this plant is a

         25  contradiction to the Clean Air Act in connection to
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          2  the non- smoking ban, and yet the DEP would see our

          3  densely populated community poisoned by fumes and

          4  exhaust from trucks going in and out of our streets.

          5    And this is not to mention the hospital that is

          6  only two blocks away from the proposed site which is

          7  already inundated with asthma patients.  What's the

          8  DEP thinking about?  Are they really trying to

          9  protect us?

         10                 Having said this, can anyone really

         11  make a conscious decision and vote on destroying

         12  lives?  Will sorry be suffice if a tragedy occurs

         13  when it could have been avoided?  This is a real

         14  serious issue concerning the health and the

         15  citizens.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Are there any

         17  questions from the Committee members for the ladies

         18  and gentlemen?  Seeing none, thank you very much.

         19                 We will now call up Jacqueline

         20  Rodriguez from My Community and Mosholu, Woodlawn

         21  Coalition; Karen Argenti, Riverkeeper.  Is Karen

         22  Agenti here?  Anthony Riviecolo from 204th Street-

         23  there you go- Bambridge Avenue Merchants, and John

         24  Scarcone from -- Town Attorney of Eastchester. John

         25  Scarcone?
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

          4  much.  You can decide who goes first and then

          5  proceed with your testimony.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  I say ladies

          7  first.  Why not.

          8                 MS. ARGENTI:  Hi, my name is Karen

          9  Argenti. I'm presenting testimony for the

         10  Riverkeeper.  An environmental signatory to the 1997

         11  New York City Watershed Memorandum of Agreement was

         12  unable to send a representative to testify today.

         13  In lieu of this, I was asked to express to the

         14  Council the organization's concern that the MOU does

         15  not seem to provide equitable distribution of funds.

         16                 In previous correspondence to the

         17  Governor regarding the alienation legislation,

         18  Riverkeeper expressed concern that the legislation

         19  failed to provide sufficient safeguards to ensure

         20  that any funds given in exchange for the parkland

         21  will be spent on protecting the communities most

         22  impacted by the industrial plant.  This concern

         23  continues.

         24                 The MOU notes that the alienation

         25  legislation requires the City to acquire additional
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          2  parklands of equal or greater fair market value

          3  and/or perform capital improvements to existing park

          4  and recreational facilities which are equal to or

          5  greater than the fair market value of those land

          6  discontinued pursuant to this Act.  As such, the

          7  parkland acquisition capital improvement funds

          8  effectively serve as mitigation for the impacts

          9  posed by the water filtration facility.  Therefore,

         10  they should have been subject to public comment

         11  during the environmental review process.  That did

         12  not happen here.

         13                 Moreover, of the more than 60

         14  projects identified in the MOU, only four appear to

         15  be located in the adversely impacted Van Cortlandt

         16  Park.  This does not appear to serve as adequate

         17  mitigation for the water treatment facility

         18  construction, operation and maintenance impacts on

         19  the park and the surrounding community that is most

         20  impacted by the project.

         21                 Since I still have another one

         22  minute, I'll jus throw in something about what I

         23  have to say.  I am from Jerome Park, Friends of

         24  Jerome Park Reservoir, and I will let -- just bring

         25  to your attention, which I will supplement in
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          2  writing, that there are a list of permits and

          3  approvals from the EIS, the SEIS, that the City

          4  needs to do and they still haven't decided -- you're

          5  going to vote on this, the applicability of.   New

          6  York City's Zoning Resolution Section 1113 is still

          7  under consideration.  They haven't applied to New

          8  York State Historic Preservation Office for

          9  approval.  They haven't got a work permit from the

         10  Highway Department.  They haven't gotten permits

         11  from the Department of Environmental Conservation

         12  for air permits.  There's a lot of things that are

         13  missing, and I'll give you these things so you can

         14  look at them and I will supplement it. Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         16  much, Karen.  Next?

         17                 MS. RODRIGUEZ:  My name is

         18  Jacqueline.  I live on Rochambeau Avenue, two block

         19  away from where the City wants to put a filtration

         20  plant.  This is not invisible neighbor.  We exist.

         21  I have three children, all of them have asthma.

         22  Even I've been treated for asthma.  I know how its

         23  feel like.  Many other people in my neighbor have

         24  asthma, too.  The neighborhood is 44% Latino, 36%

         25  African American, 10% South Asia and other group.
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          2  It's low income neighborhood and many of these

          3  people have asthma.

          4                 I'm sitting here and I know people

          5  have made the decision that I know this will come

          6  around.  A lot of people in my neighbor, they not

          7  right here, they not calling you, they not going to

          8  your office, but everybody in my neighbor know who

          9  is doing this, who is want to do this, and they know

         10  and you maybe don't see them at your door, you know,

         11  bothering you, but they know who are all the clique

         12  or the people in the Bronx who want to be the

         13  filtration plant.

         14  And I'm sitting here -- people here taking this as a

         15  joke. This is not a joke.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         17  much, Jacqueline.  Next?

         18                 MR. RIVIECOLO:  Good afternoon.  My

         19  name is Anthony Riviecolo.  I actually represent a

         20  lot of interests here, particularly being in the

         21  Norwood community.  As owner and CEO of a company in

         22  Norwood called the Financial Advisors Group, our

         23  people are income tax and certified financial

         24  planners.  If I wore that hat here today, I'd be the

         25  first to tell you that I would look at the Eastview
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          2  site simply because it's economically cheaper.  As

          3  President of the 204th Street Bambridge Avenue

          4  Merchants Association, I would ironically tell you

          5  that all of our merchants are totally against having

          6  the water plant, although 70% of our merchants at

          7  204th Street believe that by having the Jerome Gun

          8  Hill water plant, in essence, you'll be destroying

          9  the Jerome Gun Hill bid.  And by doing that, you'll

         10  actually bring about 30- 40% of those residents down

         11  to our merchant district and, in essence, increase

         12  our sales.  If I was sitting here as a member of

         13  Community Board 7 as to which I am, I would, of

         14  course, tell you that there are no current zoning

         15  laws in the EIS statement that support currently

         16  having it here.

         17                 I just want to sit here, if I might

         18  for just a moment, as a 30- year resident of the

         19  community, to simply tell you that I think you

         20  should listen to the voice of the people.  The voice

         21  of the people was extremely clear last night at the

         22  State Senate 33rd District and the 34th District, in

         23  the State Assembly 80th District, as well as in the

         24  81st District.  65% of our neighbors have told the

         25  City Council we do not want it in the Bronx.  So I
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          2  would strongly recommend, of course, since you have

          3  the site already picked, as well as bought for in

          4  Eastview, that you reconsider your proposal.  Thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

          7  much, Anthony.

          8                 MR. SCARCONE:  Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chairman and members of the Council.  My name is

         10  John Scarcone.  I'm the town attorney for the Town

         11  of Eastchester in Westchester County.

         12                 I've come here out of due respect for

         13  your jurisdiction as a City Council and the

         14  decisions you have to make regarding the alienation

         15  of your park, but I respectfully submit that it

         16  should not be and must not be a consideration for

         17  your decision as to whether or not you're going to

         18  have jobs, other cash incentives or tax benefits

         19  from this park, number one.

         20                 The alienation of parkland is an

         21  almost impossible test to meet, and one of those

         22  tests should be whether or not this is the only

         23  suitable location to site this filtration plant.  It

         24  clearly is not.  There's a location up in Mount

         25  Pleasant in Westchester County, the former Union
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          2  Carbide plant.  There are no schools nearby. There

          3  are no houses except for former Governor

          4  Rockefeller's estate, which is probably eight or

          5  nine miles away.  There are only highways that go in

          6  and around this former Union Carbide plant, number

          7  one.

          8                 The other thing that you have to

          9  consider are the impacts, not only on the park and

         10  your community in the Bronx, but also on the

         11  surrounding communities, which brings me to the

         12  point of why I'm here.

         13                 The Town of Eastchester fits into

         14  this because there is a current pump station located

         15  in Eastchester that's been there for decades.  In

         16  order for this deal to go through, if the plant is

         17  sited in the Bronx, United Water must expand the

         18  Eastchester pump plant, which would create

         19  significant impacts on the Town of Eastchester.

         20  Number one, it is located in the emergency

         21  evacuation route for the high school, the middle

         22  school and for the Town Hall, the library and

         23  community center.

         24                 Number two, the location, due to the

         25  fact in 1994 that the town's Planning Board
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          2  clerically erred in not rendering a decision with

          3  respect to their application, they were not required

          4  to go through an environmental impact.  If they had

          5  gone through an environmental impact, it's likely

          6  that they would not be permitted to expand the plant

          7  as they wish.

          8                 Mr. Chairman, could I have some more

          9  time while you're interrupted?  Okay.  Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman.

         11                 The impacts were significant.  The

         12  storage of hazardous chemicals on the site is a

         13  significant danger to the school, which is within

         14  walking distance of this proposed pump station.  And

         15  the fact that it should -- the Mount Pleasant site

         16  is available should be the major consideration of

         17  this Committee in determining whether or not they

         18  alienate parkland in the Bronx.  Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chairman and members of the Council.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         21  much.  Are there any questions?  Seeing none, thank

         22  you very much.

         23                 Next we will have Vivian Rivas from

         24  the community, as well as William Moakler from the

         25  Norwood Residents and Employees of Northwest Bronx
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          2  Cleng Coalition, Richard T. Fitzsimmons from Local

          3  147 Tunnel Workers, and Maria Maldonado from the

          4  Northwest Bronx Community Coalition.

          5                 You have a video presentation?

          6  Again, let's make sure we have everybody.  We have

          7  Vivian, yes.  We have William, we have Richard and

          8  we have Maria.  Do we have all parties?  Okay.  Yes,

          9  we do.

         10                 MS. RIVAS:  Hi.  My name is Vivian

         11  Rivas. I'm a member of the community.  I would like

         12  to share some pictures with you.  I don't know how

         13  much you know about the alternative site to building

         14  in Van Cortlandt Park. Probably when you voted last

         15  spring you did not have enough information about the

         16  Eastview site.  But the Eastview site is zoned for

         17  industrial use.  It is not a residential area as

         18  opposed to Van Cortlandt Park, where in half a mile

         19  you can find 26,000 people.  In Eastview you have to

         20  travel 41 mile in order to find 3,000 people.

         21                 Because Eastview is an industrial

         22  site, the structure would not be built underground.

         23  This means there will not be blasting a hole the

         24  size of eight, nine acres and 80 feet deep into

         25  bedrock and hauling the debris away in trucks every
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          2  two minutes for two years.  There would be less

          3  impact in the surrounding areas.

          4                 The City always complains that there

          5  we will have ot pay taxes in Eastview and no taxes

          6  in the city park. But the City never tells us how

          7  much those taxes would be. A recent article in the

          8  Westchester paper, Journal News told us taxes would

          9  be $2 million a year for the Eastview site.

         10  According to the DEP, we can save $309 million by

         11  building the plant in Eastview, and those 309

         12  million saved will pay taxes for 150 years.

         13                 Our community is one of the very few

         14  mixed ethnic working class neighborhoods, a mix of

         15  southern Black, Caribbean, Latino, South Asian, Arab

         16  with a few Irish and Jewish that still remain.  Here

         17  are the high density apartment building across the

         18  street from the DEP's preferred site.

         19                 As others have said, the community's

         20  primary concern about construction is increased

         21  asthma.  One in four children already have asthma.

         22  Across the street from the park we have service

         23  centers, churches, community centers, Montefiore

         24  Hospital, schools and also Bronx School of Science.

         25  It's right across the street from the site where
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          2  they would drill a new vault chamber.  The park is a

          3  working people's neighborhood refuge, a place you

          4  don't have to travel far to, a place you can relax

          5  with the family after work.

          6                 Please contact us to arrange for a

          7  visit to the sites.  We have watched people change

          8  their minds when they visit our neighborhood and the

          9  industrial site.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Next.

         11                 (Ms. Maldonado difficult to discern

         12  due to dialect and language.)

         13                 MS. MALDONADO:  I'm just going to be

         14  something bit.  My name is Maria Maldonado and I'm

         15  talking on behalf of my mother, grandmother and in

         16  care of other people.

         17                 You know that nowhere that the

         18  highest it can be built is going to stop the

         19  pollution for endangering the people, especially

         20  those people that they have breathing problems.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Next.

         23                 MR. FITZSIMMONS:  How you doing?  I

         24  appreciate you allowing me this few moments.  I wish

         25  I had spoke earlier because I'd say my local union
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          2  has made the most sacrifices in delivering clean

          3  drinking water to New York City.  I'm going to get

          4  into that.

          5                 Since 1970 we've lost 24 people, and

          6  I don't mean -- I mean dead lost, working on water

          7  tunnel number three.  We feel very strongly about

          8  this site being sited in the Bronx.  There's no

          9  reason for it to be sited anywhere else.

         10                 I speak on behalf of the Tunnel

         11  Workers Local Union Local 147.  Our headquarters is

         12  in Woodlawn at 4332 Catona Avenue.  We've been there

         13  for 20 years.  What brought us to the Bronx was the

         14  valve chamber.  We've moved out of the Flat Iron

         15  Building in Manhattan to move to the Bronx to buy

         16  our location in the Bronx and to be there for the

         17  last 20 years.  Many of my members live in the 1470

         18  area.  Most of them moved there after the

         19  construction of the valve chamber.  Through the

         20  employment they were able to purchase the homes in

         21  that area.  Up until that time, they were unable to

         22  purchase homes and mostly lived in flats in the

         23  Bronx.

         24                 Okay, filtration can no longer be

         25  avoided. Since the plant by law must now be built,
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          2  we should build it in New York City.  The

          3  construction jobs that will be created will be well

          4  paying positions, wages and benefits that can

          5  support a family.  These are the kind of jobs and

          6  wages that should stay in New York neighborhoods.

          7  Building in Westchester guarantees that most of the

          8  jobs will go to the people upstate.  The Eastview

          9  alternative is a 24 mile driving distance from the

         10  hub in the Bronx.  There is no public transportation

         11  to the site.  On the other hand, many of the members

         12  will take the subway to work at the Mosholu site.

         13  There will be an economic benefit to the site in the

         14  Bronx.  All the members are going eat at least two

         15  of their meals, five or six days a week, in that

         16  area, supporting those establishments.

         17                 It would cost $200 million more in

         18  capital dollars to build this faculty in

         19  Westchester.  Why should we send our tax dollars to

         20  Westchester, especially since no people from

         21  Westchester have been killed in the construction of

         22  water tunnel number three.  Those were all City

         23  people, Bronx, Brooklyn, Queens, Staten Island and

         24  Manhattan.

         25                 And another thing that I take umbrage
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          2  to in this room is it seems that everybody from the

          3  Bronx just wants the jobs for the Bronx.  These jobs

          4  should go to all five boroughs, as the system is

          5  paid by all five boroughs. It's selfish of the

          6  people in the Bronx to want all of the jobs.  All of

          7  the jobs cannot go to the people in the Bronx. It

          8  has to go to everybody.  We have to treat everybody

          9  fairly across the board.  When you make

         10  recommendations like that, too, you might not

         11  necessarily get the most qualified people to do the

         12  job.  We are the most qualified.  Local 147, 24

         13  people dead since 1970.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Next?

         15                 MR. MOAKLER:  Good afternoon.  First

         16  of all, I'd like to complain about the insufficient

         17  notice we were given about this meeting.  I found

         18  out Monday, as I was away on vacation.  I heard

         19  other people found out Friday.  I have a number of

         20  people who wanted to attend but, because of their

         21  work schedule and insufficient notice, could not be

         22  here today.  They include Bishop Bushoto (phonetic),

         23  who is the Vicar General of New York Diocese under

         24  Cardinal Egan, Reverend Richard Richie, who's the

         25  Vicar of the Bronx Northwest Group of Parishes,
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          2  that's six parishes.  Monsignor Trainer, who is

          3  Pastor of St. Ann's Church and affiliated with the

          4  St. Ann's School, and Monsignor Larkin, who is

          5  Pastor of Van Cortlandt Park, Visitation in Van

          6  Cortlandt Park South.

          7                 Other people who wanted to attend but

          8  because of insufficient notice couldn't be here are

          9  Miss Sally O'Brien of the IHD, IAHD, that's the

         10  Center for Retarded -- I'm sorry, handicapped adults

         11  right across the street from the plant, the golf

         12  course now.  Friends of Woodlawn Cemetery wanted to

         13  be here but couldn't be here because of insufficient

         14  notice.  And also the Administration of Woodlawn

         15  Cemetery.

         16                 I have worked -- I have lived in the

         17  area for ten years now and, since living there, I've

         18  developed COPD and asthma.  Some of this is

         19  attributed to substances causing asthma, such as

         20  nitrous oxide and nitrous -- sulphur coming out from

         21  Montefiore Hospital and NCB Hospital.  This was

         22  supposed to be corrected and they were fined,

         23  however, accidents can happen again.  This, along

         24  with the pollution, any minor pollution coming from

         25  this plant would be very detrimental to my health
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          2  and friends and neighbors.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

          4  much.  Any questions, Oliver?  No?  Seeing none,

          5  thank you very much.

          6                 Next we'll have Gabriel Benitiz and

          7  Nick Urio (phonetic) from Columbia University

          8  Environmental Law Clinic.  Then we'll have Kenneth

          9  Wong from Woodlawn Residents.  Is Kenneth Wong here?

         10    He's not here?  Did he leave for the day?  Is he

         11  coming back?  He's not coming back?  Okay.  Next

         12  we'll have Sally Regenhard from Woodlawn. Is Sally

         13  Regenhard -- okay.  That is you, Sally?  And

         14  Margaret Fogarty.  There you go, Margaret.

         15                 You can choose the order.  Proceed.

         16  You have three minutes.  And state your name for the

         17  record.  I'm sorry for the long delay, but obviously

         18  we have a lot of people testifying today.

         19                 MR. BENITIZ:  Thank you, Council

         20  members.  My name is Gabriel Benitiz.  I'm a student

         21  at Columbia University Law School.  Nick and I are

         22  here as part of the Environmental Law Clinic there.

         23  We're part of the cloud of litigation that was

         24  mentioned beforehand.  There are very serious

         25  actionable issues dealing with environmental racism
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          2  and poorly- done environmental impact statements

          3  that have taken place in this process that should be

          4  recognized by the Council before entering into a

          5  memorandum of understanding.

          6                 These charges of environmental

          7  racism, they've been brought up before.  You know

          8  what the population surrounding this area is versus

          9  a very sparse population in the Eastview site.

         10                 Secondarily, I just want to bring --

         11  just point out something that hasn't been mentioned

         12  so far is that mitigation does not mean elimination.

         13    No matter how low the sulphur is on these

         14  thousands of trucks going through, there's going to

         15  be more sulphur put into the air. Mitigation does

         16  not mean that -- no scientist, no one from DEP or

         17  from any of the building and trade associations will

         18  tell you that there will be no -- that there will be

         19  less particulate matter in the air as a result of

         20  this construction.  There's going to be more, and

         21  everyone acknowledges that.  They're just saying

         22  there's just going to be not as much as there would

         23  have been ten years ago. That still means that

         24  there's going to be a lot.  So, since they have

         25  mitigation, that it's not going to increase the
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          2  health problems in the area is simply not true.  And

          3  no one's going to tell you that.  I mean, it should

          4  be out in the open.

          5                 Mitigation does not mean elimination.

          6  There's going to be larger amounts of particulate

          7  matter which is also part of the reason why the

          8  environmental impact statements have not been

          9  sufficient, and it's also part of the legal issues

         10  that are surrounding this.

         11                 That's our brief statement.  Thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  That's the

         14  statement from both of you?

         15                 MR. BENITIZ:  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay.  Thank

         17  you. Ladies?  If we can restart the clock for the

         18  new set of witnesses, Sergeant of Arms?  Restart the

         19  clock.  Thank you. Now you may proceed.

         20                 MS. REGENHARD:  My name is Sally

         21  Regenhard and I'm here today to represent the over

         22  10,000 members of the Woodlawn Taxpayers

         23  Association.

         24                 I'd like to tell you that this plant

         25  will be a disaster, not only for the people of the
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          2  Amalgamated Housing, Norwood, Van Cortlandt Village,

          3  but certainly people that will be profoundly

          4  impacted will be the hard working residents of

          5  Woodlawn.

          6                 You know, we've heard before that

          7  there are certain union offices and so on located

          8  there.  That's fine. I'm going to tell you that this

          9  is not a matter of unions. It's not a matter of

         10  jobs.  It's a matter of location.  The location for

         11  this water filtration plant needs to be in Eastview

         12  where it belongs.

         13                 The negative effects -- and I've

         14  heard so many untruths here today, it's very

         15  distressing.  And I realize that we're limited in

         16  time, but I'm going to tell you, it will be an

         17  environmental nightmare, a security nightmare, a

         18  noise and pollution nightmare.  The very fact that

         19  the same mitigation plant for RACKS (phonetic) that

         20  was used in the Boston big dig, which went on for

         21  more than a decade, that same mitigation program is

         22  going to be used for this site.  That will give you

         23  an idea of what is anticipated.

         24                 You know, why is it that the people

         25  of New York, the people in the Bronx continuously
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          2  have to suffer? Why can't we be left alone in an

          3  area that should never have a massive plant of this

          4  size?  I'm asking you to vote no on this MOU.  It is

          5  immoral, unethical and we feel illegal.  We will go

          6  to court.  But you are the people that represent the

          7  people that will be profoundly affected.

          8                 You opened the hearings by saying

          9  that there was three hearings that were

         10  comprehensive and well publicized and so on last

         11  year.  I'm very sorry, Mr. Rivera, that simply is

         12  not true.  I was a new person on the scene last

         13  year.  I called your office several times regarding

         14  the hearings and I was given very nebulous

         15  information.  One of your employees told me they

         16  weren't sure if there was going to be an open

         17  meeting, et cetera and so forth.

         18                 Nevertheless it is a disaster.  It is

         19  an environmental disaster.  It is a homeland

         20  security disaster. If that is put in that area, that

         21  will mean it's the fourth major water supply

         22  facility within one mile of each other, starting in

         23  the Hillview Reservoir two blocks from Woodlawn.

         24  Then you have the third water tunnel right in

         25  Woodlawn. Then you have this one mile from Woodlawn
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          2  and then finally you have the Jerome Park Reservoir.

          3  I have to say it's a terrorist dream.  It is loaded

          4  with volatile chemicals and I'm going to tell you,

          5  you well know, people mention the World Trade

          6  Center.  Nobody is more of an expert about the

          7  hazardous effects of the World Trade Center than I

          8  am.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         10  much, Sally.

         11                 MS. REGENHARD:  Thank you.  I'm

         12  asking you, please, please.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  And for

         14  everyone's edification, we did have three extensive

         15  meetings last year. It's all on the record.  And

         16  every single hearing that takes place is a public

         17  hearing.  That's why we have a committee structure,

         18  and all the public is always invited to come down

         19  and testify.  So we have had three hearings.  If you

         20  want to go back one year, you can get the

         21  transcripts.  They are public information.  And you

         22  will see that extensive hearings -- trust me, I know

         23  better than most.  This is what we go through in

         24  every hearing.  Thank you.  Next?

         25                 MS. FOGARTY:  My name is Margaret
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          2  Fogarty and I'm Vice- President of the Woodlawn

          3  Heights Taxpayers and Community Association.  I was

          4  in Woodlawn when the third tunnel was built and we

          5  experienced a lot of noise, blasting.  And when we

          6  came home from work at night, our windows were

          7  cracked.  There wasn't too much we could do about

          8  that because we couldn't prove anything, could we?

          9  But this went on for quite some time.  They promised

         10  they would fix it up, make a park on top.  Well this

         11  is 30 years later.  It's still not finished.  And

         12  now we have a 24- hour watch there right across from

         13  my home.

         14                 Now, the traffic.  It's going to come

         15  from Major Deegan.  Do you know what the Major

         16  Deegan is like at seven or 8:00 in the morning, four

         17  or 5:00 at night on East 233rd Street with three and

         18  four hospitals there, nursing homes, schools.  In

         19  Woodlawn we have four schools.  Right across we have

         20  Our Lady of Mercy Hospital.  So traffic is

         21  horrendous right now, not to mention what it is

         22  going to be like when we have this monstrosity in

         23  the golf course.  And it really isn't fair to the

         24  Bronx to put it there.

         25                 As far as the unions are talking, the
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          2  Tunnel Workers Union, I live in Woodlawn so I know

          3  what goes on there.  There's not one of them living

          4  in the 10470 area or their secretaries, because I

          5  know them.  They live upstate. And we do have two

          6  unions, three union halls there, actually.  You

          7  know, these unions, they just want jobs. They really

          8  don't care about the health of this highly densely

          9  populated area that we have over there.  Does

         10  anybody care?  To me it seems like money comes

         11  before people's health.  It seems that way.

         12                 And another thing -- do I have a

         13  minute?  The Parks Department.  If you listen to it,

         14  aren't the parks supposed to be kept up to snuff

         15  anyhow?  Shouldn't the children have parks?  Why are

         16  we waiting for a water filtration plant to be put on

         17  the golf course in a park so that our children can

         18  have a park to play in?  Is that fair? They should

         19  keep the parks up.  Somebody should be accountable

         20  for what's going on in the Bronx.  You need to find

         21  out what's going on, because we should have parks

         22  and our children should have parks and they should

         23  have a swimming pool, too, where they can go.  They

         24  shouldn't have to travel up to Westchester.  I think

         25  that might be fair.
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          2                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.  I

          4  say, if they want a pool, there's a beautiful pool

          5  in my district.  They could turn a park pool into a

          6  beautiful pool.  I swam there as a kid.  They don't

          7  have to go to Westchester.  They could stay in the

          8  Bronx.

          9                 And I'm proud of the fact that in my

         10  district, we're the third largest district in

         11  reference to parks in the Bronx and the sixth

         12  largest in the City of New York.  And the Bronx does

         13  have a lot of parks.  I know Oliver Koppell is

         14  always a staunch advocate for parks and the rest of

         15  the Committee members, we always do put a lot but,

         16  unfortunately, you know, money is very -- is not

         17  plentiful in this time, this day and age, because of

         18  the aftermath of 9/11, because of the recession.

         19  And while we do get $28 million a year in capital

         20  projects, we have over 300 parks within the Bronx,

         21  and it's hard to really spread that out equitably.

         22  So this would, if it were to be built in the Van

         23  Cortlandt Park area, the 243 million would

         24  definitely benefit the  Van Cortlandt Park area as

         25  well as other parks in the Borough of Bronx that
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          2  desperately need it.

          3                 One thing I have heard, I just want

          4  to raise it up because I have heard it also and I

          5  want to state it for the record, the unions do take

          6  care of their own, and I'm pretty sure they're going

          7  to do everything in their power to make sure that

          8  their own members are not exposed to any

          9  contaminants.  And so, if they're going to put the

         10   -- implement policies to make sure their own

         11  members are not contaminated, the people on the

         12  exterior won't be as contaminated either.  So....

         13                 MS. REGENHARD:  It's impossible.

         14                 MS. FOGARTY:  It's impossible to do

         15  that. Thank you.

         16                 MS. REGENHARD:  Thank you.

         17                 MS. FOGARTY:  But that's impossible.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         19  much, ladies.  And thank you, gentlemen.

         20                 Next we have Fay Muir from the Bronx

         21  Environmental Health & Justice.  Is Fay here?  Fay

         22  is here. Yasmin Flores from the Community Resident

         23   -- she's a community resident as well.  Carlos Rea

         24  from Local 79.  We have Carlos Rea here?  Is Carlos

         25  Rea here from Local 79? We'll put him aside?  We
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          2  have Jay Horowitz from the Riverdale Parks

          3  Initiative.  Okay.  There we go.  We have Jay

          4  Horowitz here.  And Mike McGuire from the Mason

          5  Tenders District Council.  Is Mike McGuire here?  I

          6  do not see him here.  We have Fred LeMoine from the

          7  Metallic Reinforce -- Ironworkers.  Please come

          8  forward.

          9                 If you have any written testimony to

         10  provide for the members?  You decide the order and

         11  then proceed.

         12                 PRESIDENT HOROWITZ:  Good afternoon,

         13  Chairman Rivera and the one Council member is still

         14  here.  Actually, he doesn't sit on the Committee,

         15  which is pretty amazing. My name is Jay Horowitz.

         16  I'm the President of the Riverdale Parks Initiative

         17  and a member of Community Board 8, although I do not

         18  speak on behalf of the community board right now. I

         19  am here to address a slightly different issue than

         20  what's been brought up, whether to vote yes or no,

         21  although Assemblyman Dinowitz did bring it up.  That

         22  is the allocation of funds in the MOU.

         23                 Three community board districts

         24  border Van Cortlandt Park.  Those are 7, 12 and 8.

         25  These are the districts which clearly will be
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          2  impacted the most by the construction of the

          3  filtration plant in Van Cortlandt Park, the adjacent

          4  districts.

          5                 Allow me to just present to you the

          6  amount of money allocated to those districts.  Just

          7  for the purpose of this analysis, the $19.3 million

          8  of funding that was allocated for Van Cortlandt Park

          9  projects obviously has to be divided by three

         10  because Van Cortlandt Park is bordered by three

         11  districts.  Community Board 7 received over $46

         12  million in the MOU.  District 12, over $36 million.

         13  Community Board 8, $12 million.  That's it.  I think

         14  that's very unfair and there is an avenue --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Is that on top

         16  of the 43 million?  Oliver, is that on top of the 43

         17  million? Okay.

         18                 PRESIDENT HOROWITZ:  And there is an

         19  avenue for amendment, also.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  The way this

         21  analysis, and I've seen the analysis he has, there's

         22  $19 million for Van Cortlandt Park.  It was divided

         23  three ways. The $43 million is for Van Cortlandt

         24  Park, but it is for direct mitigation which I think

         25  mostly will go to the area where the plant itself is
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          2  being located.  I mean, I don't know exactly, but

          3  the 43 million is in addition to the 200 million.  I

          4  don't know how much of that you'd allocate to

          5  Community Board 8.  The park itself is, I don't

          6  think, itself in any community board, so it's

          7  difficult to make the determination.  But the fact

          8  is that there is 43 million, but I don't know

          9  whether you would allocate any of that to Community

         10  Board 8.  Most of it, I think, would be probably

         11  properly allocated to Community Board 7, but it --

         12  altogether Van Cortlandt Park will get approximately

         13  60 million if this goes through.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  $60 million?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  And if you

         16  want to divide it three ways, then I guess Community

         17  Board 8 would be 20, but the other community boards

         18  would be getting more.

         19                 PRESIDENT HOROWITZ:  You mentioned

         20  that funding is for the park, then?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Yes.

         22                 PRESIDENT HOROWITZ:  Okay.  That's

         23  not for -- that's rehabilitation, though.  I mean,

         24  we're talking about mitigation now.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Well, they
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          2  call it mitigation money.

          3                 PRESIDENT HOROWITZ:  I don't think

          4  the $43 million is in the -- it's not there.  It's

          5  not in --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Not in this

          7  project list, but it's $243 million in total for

          8  park projects.  43 million is for rehabilitation or

          9  mitigation in the park itself.

         10                 PRESIDENT HOROWITZ:  Okay.  But

         11  that's clearly necessary.  I mean --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Yes.  Nobody

         13  said it wasn't.

         14                 PRESIDENT HOROWITZ:  That's in the

         15  park itself.  Then there -- each community board

         16  district is clearly getting funds for their own

         17  district's projects.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  That's true.

         19                 PRESIDENT HOROWITZ:  Which we're

         20  clearly lacking in 8.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay.  Next?

         22  Let's restart the clock.  Next.

         23                 MS. MUIR:  Yes.  My name is Fay Muir.

         24    I'm speaking for the Bronx Environmental Health &

         25  Justice.
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          2                 Since you mentioned the money part,

          3  it's interesting that the first time around we got

          4  43 million. Now we get added 200 million, not to

          5  mention 1.6 billion for the plant.  Wouldn't it be

          6  interesting if they actually spent that money or

          7  even one- quarter of it to fix the problems where

          8  the source water is?  And as a matter of what you

          9  mentioned, Mr. Rivera, and the Commissioner

         10  mentioned about a mandate.  We haven't broken any

         11  laws.  All our water meets the standards which the

         12  Commissioner says.  So therefore, we cannot be

         13  mandated by the Federal Government until we break

         14  that law.  It's only because we entered into an

         15  agreement to build this.  And there is no deadline.

         16  We can still go back to the Federal Government and

         17  say to them, "Here is a plan to use one- quarter of

         18  those funds," and I'm sure they'd be happy to accept

         19  it.

         20                 Now to continue with my testimony,

         21  because I would really like to address this jobs

         22  issue.  I mean, everybody's talking about this jobs

         23  issue.  This shouldn't be the reason why we do this.

         24    I myself fully understand what it means to hold a

         25  living wage job because a female and a minority and
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          2  the head of a household, of a single parent home,

          3  and many of my neighbors, also, in the Bronx, the

          4  same thing.  I fully appreciate the trial of holding

          5  onto the job and the importance to the union of

          6  acquiring good jobs for their members.  I also fully

          7  appreciate the plight of each human being to be

          8  fairly and equitably treated.

          9                 The Mayor and Commissioner that the

         10  Bronx will benefit dramatically from living wage

         11  jobs.  But the same number of Bronx residents are in

         12  the Westchester construction unions as in the New

         13  York City construction unions.  So about 10% of both

         14  Westchester and New York City's unions are Bronx

         15  residents.  If the City wants jobs for Bronx

         16  residents, all it needs to do is to stipulate in the

         17  contract that on a huge City project, 10% or more of

         18  the jobs go to Bronx residents.  This is done on a

         19  normal basis. A certain number of jobs go to females

         20  or minorities by stipulation.  A stipulation by zip

         21  code is just a matter of negotiation as was

         22  eloquently stated by the gentleman from the Bronx

         23  Business Agency.  And he was in favor.  I'm

         24  opposing.  So, I mean, as far as jobs go, I don't

         25  think that should be a consideration.
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          2                 Now, these officials favor a Bronx

          3  site because they get support from union dues gained

          4  by the Central Labor Council.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Sorry.

          6                 MS. MUIR;  Well, can I just say that

          7   --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Very quickly.

          9                 MS. MUIR:  The jobs are important,

         10  but the Bronx has more than its fair share of

         11  hazardous sites because they were told they would

         12  get jobs and economic benefits.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.

         14                 MS. MUIR:  It would be a grave

         15  injustice to claim the benefit from this project.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         17  much, Fay.

         18                 Good evening -- good afternoon.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  It's almost good

         20  evening.

         21                 Good afternoon, Chairman Rivera, Mr.

         22  Koppell and ladies and gentlemen.  My name is Fred

         23  LeMoine.  I'm a business agent with the Metallic,

         24  Leathers & Reinforcing Ironworkers Union Local 46,

         25  as well as being the Vice President of the Bronx
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          2  Board of Business Agents.  Thank you very much for

          3  having this hearing today.

          4                 Although some people think that the

          5  construction unions don't care about anything except

          6  building.  I'm here to say that's not true.  It's

          7  definitely not true in my case.  I'm glad these

          8  hearings are held.  I'm glad that the concerns of

          9  all the citizens are brought up, and I really truly

         10  want them to be met, to be dealt with. You know,

         11  Paul mentioned earlier, Paul Luddine, about a wash

         12  going through with a truck so that the dust could be

         13  kept down.  He mentioned mud.  I've got to be honest

         14  with you, a lot of contractors, if their feet aren't

         15  held to the fire to do that, they won't do that.

         16  And that's true of many different businesses.

         17  People to try to cut corners and get away with

         18  things.  It's our duty, my duty and everybody here,

         19  if we are to have that project there, to lessen the

         20  burden on the community as much as possible.  So I'm

         21  glad these things are brought up here.  And although

         22  they're brought up here, that's not a reason not to

         23  build it.  In any major construction project in this

         24  city that's ever been undertaken, there has

         25  definitely been challenges there. It's not perfect
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          2  for everyone.  There are certain inconveniences for

          3  people.

          4                 My union, over the last five years,

          5  has increased its membership by approximately 500

          6  people, and the question's been brought up about

          7  where they live and so on and so forth.  Of the 500

          8  new members, over 75% of them are definitely from

          9  the five boroughs.  Of the existing members, I'd say

         10  it's about 50/50 as far as where they live. They

         11  live in the five boroughs and they also live in Long

         12  Island, Westchester, some in Rockland, some in

         13  Pennsylvania And the newer members, they can't

         14  afford to move out into those areas anyway.

         15                 My union, again, is a union which is

         16  different that most of the building trades unions

         17  here in that we cover both the Bronx and Westchester

         18  County.  But I've been advocating this project being

         19  built in the Bronx continuously, and the reason for

         20  that is that many of these members will not get --

         21  they won't be able to work in Westchester County if

         22  that's where the job is.  And why?  It has to do

         23  with economics.  It has to do with the cost of

         24  automobiles, the cost of insurance.  When a young

         25  person gets an opportunity in the building trades
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          2  today, they can't just go buy a car and get it

          3  insured and so on and so forth. It takes them a

          4  number of years to get established, to get set up

          5  that way where they can work in some of the outer

          6  areas.

          7                 What happens, on many of these

          8  projects we have members that do live in the

          9  outlying areas, and when we don't have enough people

         10  to get on the job sites, what we do is we reach out

         11  to other unions which are part of the same

         12  international but we'll reach out up into Rockland

         13  County or Putnam County and see if we can get --

         14  three minutes is definitely fast.  Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.

         17                 MS. FLORES:  Hello.  My name is

         18  Yasmin Flores.  I'm a resident of the Norwood

         19  community for over 15 years.  Overall in the Bronx

         20  all my life, born and raised.

         21                 I'd like to say that I thank God that

         22  I have an opportunity, that I live in a country

         23  where I can voice my grievances and I have a forum

         24  to do it.

         25                 I'm a resident, as I said, of the
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          2  Norwood community.  I'm also a BEHJ member, Bronx

          3  Environmental Health & Justice.  My effort, my task

          4  as a member is a community outreach to enlist

          5  membership for BEHJ.  Another effort that I've taken

          6  on is to take on a petition represented here in this

          7  folder.  And I have more copies here if you'd care

          8  to view them.  A hundred and three signatures had

          9  already been submitted to Mr. Miller at a meeting on

         10  September 2nd, and the following copies represent

         11  petition signatures that are going to follow -- be

         12  sent to Mr. Miller under separate cover.

         13                 I find that petitions seem to be not

         14  a very interesting item, except for when you're

         15  trying to get on a ballot, but it's given me the

         16  forum and an opportunity to speak one to one with my

         17  neighbors.  The component that I just want to

         18  highlight here today for consideration as you're

         19  voting for the MOU, is that the immediate people

         20  that live in the surrounding Van Cortlandt community

         21  is predominantly minority and immigrant.

         22                 One of my efforts in trying to, and

         23  one of my pleasures has been in trying to

         24  communicate to my people in my community.  It's not

         25  always easy to get a signature.  I need quality
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          2  time.  And in that effort, I've also found myself

          3  doing well in speaking Spanish recently and an

          4  advanced crash course in broken English.  But that's

          5  what it takes.  That's what's happening in our

          6  immediate community. Those are the people that live

          7  two blocks away from Van Cortlandt Park.  They have

          8  no clue as to the true impact that this is going to

          9  do to their families and to their quality of life.

         10  Please take that into consideration. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.  Any

         12  questions?  No?  Thank you very much, ladies and

         13  Fred.

         14                 Next we have David Ferguson from the

         15  Croton Watershed Clean Water Coalition.  Is David --

         16  there you go, sir.  Then we have Benjamin Rodriguez

         17  from D.C. 9, Painters. How are you, Benjamin?  Then

         18  we have, now that I see it, we have Arthur Gladwin

         19  Wishropp.  Here?  No?  I guess he left. This is the

         20  second time calling.  Luis Coronel?  Luis Coronel?

         21  No?  Dart Westphal?  I have not seen Dart here, not

         22  come back.  And Leonard T. Impastato.  Not here.

         23  I'm proud to say that we have gone through three

         24  hours of hearings and you are the last two to

         25  testify today.
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          2                 MR. FERGUSON:  Isn't that great.

          3  Congratulations.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Four hours,

          5  actually.  I apologize.  Four hours of hearings.

          6  Proceed, gentlemen.  You decide, flip of a coin,

          7  however you want to, who goes first.

          8                 MR. FERGUSON:  I must say thank you

          9  for having this hearing, even though the DEP has a

         10  couple of hours and then we have three minutes

         11  apiece, and some of us, like myself, have spent

         12  seven years working on these issues even before

         13  Commissioner Ward was aware of water as an issue.

         14  There are alternatives.

         15                 They mentioned color.  As a matter of

         16  fact, Commissioner Ward at the 31st of January

         17  meeting up in the Bronx that Carrion chaired, said

         18  it's not about tomorrow or ten years or 15 years,

         19  it's a hundred years from now. That's what we're

         20  doing this for.  Right now it meets all EPA

         21  standards, this water.  It's better than most

         22  filtered waters.  And the problem is color.  Well,

         23  color can be treated with chlorine dioxide.  And DEP

         24  sent a vial up there to Toronto, to the experts that

         25  we've been dealing with for years learning about
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          2  chlorine dioxide as an alternative, as a main

          3  disinfectant instead of chlorine, which takes care

          4  of color, odor and a whole lot of other things and

          5  doesn't have the disinfection byproducts.  And so,

          6  the carbon thing's out, everything's out.  It's an

          7  incredible thing.  It's used in Europe, it's used in

          8  Canada, used in New York City.  It's an up and

          9  coming thing, and the DEP sent this thing up there

         10  but, somehow, the sample got tampered with in some

         11  way and the results were useless at this point.  We

         12  want that test. So there is that.

         13                 Also, our group, the Croton Watershed

         14  Clean Water Coalition and somebody in Washington

         15  affirmed that we've been working with, they got

         16  Tracy Meehan (phonetic), who's the head of the Water

         17  Division of the EPA, who is interested, who

         18  actually, through this representative, came down at

         19  a public meeting and presented Commissioner Ward

         20  with an opportunity to explore this alternative and

         21  DEP never followed up on that at all.  So DEP isn't

         22  trying -- This whole DAF facility is already

         23  obsolete. They don't even teach it anymore.

         24  Membrane technology in these last few years has

         25  taken over the field.  So why would we build an
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          2  obsolete thing that's going to -- and it's an

          3  industrial plant.  The Commissioner said, "Oh, it's

          4  water over lightbulbs.  It's very passive."  Has he

          5  ever been to a plant?  DEP took us to a plant,

          6  Worcester, Mass., and let me tell you, it's an

          7  industrial facility.  It's not a passive thing like

          8  a bio chamber or all these other things.  This is --

          9  it's got vents the DEP itself said would put out

         10  contaminated air into the community.

         11                 It has no back- up power.  They got a

         12  wavier from the Department of Health.  Can you

         13  imagine that?  10% of our water, 30 during droughts.

         14    Supposing we had a blackout?  Supposing the

         15  Delaware aqueduct broke, a 35 million gallon a day

         16  leak that's going on for the 13 years, and supposing

         17  we had a terrorist attack?  Supposing any of these

         18  things happened together during a drought and

         19  there's no back- up power?  That's just the tip of

         20  my iceberg.

         21                 And I really resent spending seven

         22  years as a citizen working to protect our water

         23  supply and having three minutes, having to sit here

         24  for four hours, being held out in the hall.  And I

         25  think it's a bad system.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.

          3  Next?

          4  Have a good day.

          5                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Yes.  Good afternoon,

          6  Chair Rivera and the City Council, whoever's left

          7  here.  I see you guys like to work overtime.  That's

          8  good.  I like to see that.

          9                 What you call it -- excuse me?  Good.

         10    I'm glad that you guys really do it.

         11                 My name is Benjamin Rodriguez, and

         12  I'm a business representative from the Painters

         13  Union, District Council #9, and Ilight (phonetic)

         14  trades.  I'm also the -- I'm also a member of the

         15  Bronx Business Agents.  This is part of the

         16  construction trades.

         17                 As a business representative, by the

         18  end of the day now, you guys should know that our

         19  main job is to get jobs for people.  All we do is

         20  get jobs.  We help people, our members, put food on

         21  the table.  That's all we do every day.  That's our

         22  main job.  And that's why I'm here, to ask the

         23  Council to please vote yes to build the filter plant

         24  and the $243 million in parks projects in the Bronx.

         25                 If we build in the Bronx, the
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          2  employment opportunities will help the entire

          3  borough.  The construction of this plant at a Bronx

          4  location would create hundreds of new union jobs in

          5  the area, many of which will be filled by Bronx and

          6  New York City residents.

          7                 The construction jobs that will be

          8  created will be prevailing wage jobs that can

          9  support a family and maybe even fulfill the dream,

         10  the American dream, sending the kids to college and

         11  even buying a home, because whoever gets to work on

         12  this job here, when the job is done, your career is

         13  not done.  You can always go work in Manhattan, in

         14  Long Island, Staten Island, Queens.  You name it.

         15  As long as you become a member of Wanawa (phonetic)

         16  union, the doors are open as far as this being a

         17  career.

         18                 Bronx construction workers, who are

         19  paid prevailing wage on this job, will spend money

         20  in local stores and businesses.  Their health care

         21  dollars are spent in Bronx doctors and Bronx

         22  hospitals.  My union has over 600 -- I'm sorry, over

         23  6,000 members in New York City, and 60% of them live

         24  in the five boroughs.  Over 500 live in the Bronx.

         25  So we can promise that you will see Bronx
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          2  construction workers and apprentices on this job.

          3                 I have worked with Alfred E. Smith

          4  School and other schools in the borough to get kids

          5  into the Construction Skills 2000 program which you

          6  heard before Eddie Malloy and the other guys talk

          7  about it.  This program will prepare them for

          8  careers in construction.  When projects like this

          9  are built in the Bronx, graduates of this program

         10  can get apprenticeship opportunity and support their

         11  families.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.

         13                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  If this goes to

         14  Westchester, the kids would not get this kind of

         15  work.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.

         17                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Can I finish the --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  How much further

         19  do you have to go?

         20                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Very little.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Five seconds?

         22                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Yes, five seconds.

         23  I'll jump.

         24                 Okay.  Building in the Bronx means

         25  clean water, parks, jobs, apprenticeship
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          2  opportunities, justice. I urge you to vote yes at

          3  the end of today's hearing, the Council.  And thank

          4  you.  You guys are doing a great job.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  God bless.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Since he had

          9  five seconds, I gave you five seconds.

         10                 At this point in time, we're not

         11  going to be taking a vote on this issue.  We're

         12  going to adjourn the meeting and we're going to

         13  allow for the members that remain to go through all

         14  the testimony that has been presented and to get the

         15   -- make a decision amongst themselves, and then

         16  we'll come before September 28th and we'll have a

         17  hearing before then to decide whether or not what's

         18  going to take place.  Thank you very much to all the

         19  participants.

         20                 Just for everyone's edification, the

         21  Administration is always granted the courtesy of

         22  speaking first and given the opportunity to speak

         23  without time limitation, whether we're in support of

         24  what they're testifying or whether we're opposed to

         25  what they're testifying.  It's just a courtesy
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          2  given, and we also give the courtesy to elected

          3  officials from other jurisdictions as well to have

          4  non- limitation.  We apologize that it did take four

          5  hours but, as you see, it's a very contentious issue

          6  and there's a lot of opinions.  Everyone has a right

          7  to their opinion and everyone has a right to testify

          8  before the Council.  When you have this many people,

          9  it takes time.

         10                 Thank you very much, ladies and

         11  gentlemen. We will see you before September 28th.

         12  Thank you.  Meeting is adjourned.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 2:45 p.m.)
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